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Key Indicators

Our Contribution to Wealth
Revenue Earned

Total Expenditure 

Total Surplus/(Deficit)

F2018  BWP 145,831,043
(2017: BWP 131,291,185)

F2018  BWP 323,817,710
(2017: BWP 324,637,204)

Grants Received from 
Government of Botswana

F2018  BWP 219,727,446
(2017: BWP  155,510,535)

F2018  BWP 43,068,148
(2017 Deficit: BWP 35,606,880)

Our Theme

The
Eagle-Eye 
View

No bird in the sky flies higher than 
the eagle. From the highest position 
in the sky, the eagle sees everything 
that transpires below it.

From the smallest detail at ground level to the often-
busy highway of the sky, the eagle has them all in his 
sights.

The CAAB as the Authority of the sky is just like the 
eagle. We look over the sky with a sharp, trained eye. 
Nothing flies above us. From safety and compliance 
to tourism and aviation trends, we are meticulous 
about every detail. It is important that we keep a 
bird’s eye-view of every aspect of aviation to maintain 
the stellar reputation that the CAAB has earned.

Executive  
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Team

Corporate 
Strategy

Infrastructure People Issues Corporate 
Governance

Annual Financial 
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Civil Aviation Authority of Botswana
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K 
KIA  Kasane International Airport

M 
MIA  Maun International Airport
MTC Ministry of Transport and Communications

N 
NCASCP  National Civil Aviation Security Certification 

Programme 
NCASFC  National Civil Aviation Security Facilitation 

Committee 
NCASP  National Civil Aviation Security Programme
NCASQCP  National Civil Aviation Security Quality Control 

Programme 
NCASTP  National Civil Aviation Security Training 

Programme 
NOTAM  Notice to Airmen

O 
OPS  Aircraft Operations

P 
PMO  Project Management Office
PPL  Private Pilot Licence

S 
SARPs  Standards and Recommended Practices
SASO  SADC Aviation Safety Organisation
SPEDU  Selibe Phikwe Economic Diversification Unit
SSC  Significant Safety Concerns
SSKIA  Sir Seretse Khama International Airport
SSP  State Safety Programme

U 
USAP Universal Security Audit Programme
USOAP  Universal Safety Oversight Audit Programme

V 
VPN  Virtual Private Network

A
AFCAC African Civil Aviation Commission
AGA  Aerodromes and Ground Aids
AIR  Airworthiness of Aircraft
AMEL  Aircraft Maintenance Engineer’s License
AMHS Air Traffic Services Message Handling System
AMO  Approved Maintenance Organisation
ANS  Air Navigation Services
ASFO  Aviation Security and Facilitation Oversight
ASIM  Aviation Security Inspector Manual
ASSO  Aviation Safety Standards Oversight
ATCO Air Traffic Controllers
ATO  Approved Training Organisations
ATPL  Airline Transport Pilot Licence
AVSEC  Aviation Security

C 
CAAB  Civil Aviation Authority of Botswana
CATV  Category V. Ethernet cabling
CCM  Cabin Crew Member
CMA  Continuous Monitoring Approach
CPL  Commercial Pilot Licence

D 
DAI  Directorate of Accidents Investigation

E
EI  Effective Implementation
EMS  Environmental Monitoring System
ERM  Enterprise Risk Management
ESAF  Eastern and Southern African Region
EU  European Union

F 
FIA  Francistown International Airport
FIDS Flight Information Display System
FOO  Flight Operations Officers

I 
IATA  International Air Transport Association
ICAO International Civil Aviation Organisation
ICVM ICAO Coordinated Validation Mission
ISRPs  ICAO Standards and Recommended Practices
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About Civil Aviation 
Authority of Botswana
The Civil Aviation Authority of Botswana is 
a Statutory Corporation that is committed 
to enhancing the level of Aviation safety in 
Botswana.
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CAAB AT 
A GLANCE

Most of these functions were previously performed by the former Department of Civil Aviation (DCA).
CAAB commenced full operations as an autonomous regulator on the 1st April 2009.

The regulation of 
air transport and 
enforcement of civil 
aviation regulations

The provision of air 
navigation services

The development and 
operation of airports 

Advising Government 
on civil aviation 
matters.

The continued existence of the CAAB was provided for by the Civil Aviation Act, (2011), which repealed 
the previous Act establishing the Authority. CAAB is responsible for the following, amongst others:

The Civil Aviation Authority of Botswana (“CAAB”) 
is a Statutory Corporation established by the Civil 
Aviation Authority Act (CAP 71:04) of 2004.
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        To be a
 world–class provider 

To provide efficient 
and effective 
aviation services 
to our customers 
through continuous 
development of the 
aviation industry
in Botswana.

of safe, 
secure 
and 
efficient 
aviation 
services.

Our Mission

Our Vision

CORPORATE PROFILE
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Safety
To enhance safety in the Botswana 
Civil Aviation system. 

Security
To enhance the Civil Aviation security 
system in Botswana.

Efficiency
To enhance the efficiency of the Civil 
Aviation system in Botswana.

Sustainability
To maintain sustainable development 
and operational continuity of aviation 
operations in Botswana. 

Environmental Protection
To minimise any adverse impact on 
the environment for aviation activities.

Rule of Law
To enact and/or promulgate legal 
instruments as they become 
necessary. 

Strategic ObjectivesOur Values

CAAB commits to the 
following values which will 
shape the culture of the 
organisation:

Integrity
Act with consistency of actions, values, 
methods, measures, principles, expectations 
and outcomes.

Accountability
Act with responsibility in all interactions and be 
answerable for our decisions and actions.

Collaboration
Work in unity and collaboration with our 
colleagues, partners and key stakeholders.

Customer Focus
Strive for professionalism and serving 
customers to the best of our ability.

Continuous Improvement
Work to improve the way we did things before.

(continued)CORPORATE PROFILE
Corporate Profile
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The Civil Aviation Act 2011 
repealed and replaced the 
Civil Aviation Authority 
Act of 2004, the Act that 
enabled the formation of 
the Civil Aviation Authority 
of Botswana.

Many of the provisions in 
the 2004 Act have been re-
enacted in the current Act, 
including the establishment 
of the Civil Aviation 
Authority of Botswana as an 
autonomous organisation. 
It is responsible for the 
regulation of air transport, 
enforcement of civil aviation 
regulations, the provision 
of air navigation services, 
and the operation and 
development of airports, and 
advising the Government on 
civil aviation matters.

Civil Aviation Legislation

Two important Civil Aviation enabling pieces of 
legislation are in force in Botswana: the Civil Aviation 
Act, (2011), and the Aviation Security Act, (2011). Both 
became effective on the 7th October 2011.

Some of the additional provisions of the Civil Aviation 
Act are:

Establishment of a Directorate of Accident Investigation, 
separate from CAAB, to investigate aircraft accidents 
and incidents.

Provision of regulatory framework for the licensing of air 
transport services to facilitate the implementation of air 
transport liberalisation in Botswana.

Enhancement and further clarification of the role of the 
Appeals Tribunal to review the regulatory decisions of 
CAAB.

Stricter penalties to facilitate the effective enforcement 
of civil aviation regulations.

The 2011 Aviation Security Act designates CAAB as the 
appropriate Authority responsible for aviation security in 
Botswana. The Act updates and modernises the existing 
enactments relating to aviation security, brings into force 
provisions of International Conventions on aviation security 
to which Botswana is party to and includes measures to 
address new and emerging threats against civil aviation.
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Some additional 
provisions of the Aviation 
Security Act are:

Measures to enhance 
the effectiveness of the 
aviation security system 
in Botswana and the 
capacity of CAAB and 
other National security 
agencies to manage 
aviation security and 
respond to acts of 
unlawful interference 
with civil aviation.

Measures for the 
protection of aircraft, 
aerodromes, passengers, 
crew members, ground 
personnel and air 
navigation installations 
against acts of unlawful 
interference with civil 
aviation.

Prevention against acts 
of unlawful interference 
with civil aviation 
including hijacking, 
the use of aircraft as 
weapons, the infiltration 
of weapons or hazardous 
materials and other new 
and emerging threats 
and the acts of unruly or 
disruptive passengers 
at airports and on board 
aircraft.

Stricter penalties with 
the right deterrent effect 
to facilitate the effective 
enforcement of aviation 
security and the speedy 
resolution of security 
concerns.

Annual Report 2017 / 2018 11
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OUR HISTORY
CAAB commenced full operations as a statutory 
Corporation under the Ministry of Transport and 
Communications (MTC) on the 1st of April 2009.

Governance

The Civil Aviation Authority 
of Botswana (CAAB)  is 
a statutory corporation 
reporting to the Minister 
responsible for civil 
aviation, currently being 
the Minister of Transport 
and Communications. The 
Minister is the Aeronautical 
Authority of Botswana, with 
the power to issue written 
directions to CAAB and to 
delegate some of his or her 
functions to the Authority.

CAAB is governed by a six 
Member Board tasked with 
responsibility of general 
control and guidance 
on the performance and 
management of the 
undertakings and affairs of 
the Authority.

The CAAB strives to apply 
the overarching corporate 
governance principles of 
fairness, accountability 
and transparency and 
has adopted various 

measures and practices 
consistent with best practice 
and implements the 
recommendations of various 
governance codes around 
the world.

A formal induction 
programme is arranged 
for newly appointed 
Board Members. Board 
Members are appointed for 
a maximum term of 3 years. 
They are eligible for re-
appointment.

12 Civil Aviation Authority of Botswana  
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Rule of Law

To enact and/or 
promulgate legal 
instruments as they 
become necessary.

The Civil Aviation Act further 
authorises CAAB to provide 
and charge for the following 
services:

  Safety
> Inspection of aircraft
> Issuance, renewal or 

variation of Personnel 
Licenses

> Aircraft landing
> Aircraft parking
> Air navigation and 

communications
> Fuel handling
> Passenger services
> Air operator’s certificate
> Approval of aircraft 

maintenance 
organisations

> Noise and 
environmental pollution

> Air transport licenses
> Traffic handling
> Aircraft handling
> Use or rental of any 

CAAB asset
> Any other services 

related to the operation 
of aerodromes.

These air service agreements 
also regulate frequency 
and capacity of air services 
between states, pricing and 
other commercial aspects. 
CAAB has concluded 23 
BASAs worldwide.

Safety 
Management 
System

CAAB is committed to 
enhancing the level 
of safety in Botswana. 
Botswana has an accident 
track record, which is above 
that of the Eastern and 
Southern African Region 
(ESAF) average. The ESAF 
is the ICAO Regional Office 
that covers countries in 
East and Southern Africa, 
including Botswana. To put 
this in context, the 2015 
International Civil Aviation 
Organisation Coordinated 
Validation Mission (ICVM) 
put Botswana‘s rating 
at 71.32 % of Effective 
Implementation, compared 
to 53.78 % issued in 2013. 
 
CAAB continually strives 
to improve Aviation Safety 
Services, exemplified 
by the distribution of 

guidance material on the 
implementation of Safety 
Management System to all 
stakeholders, ensuring we 
are able to provide regular 
exchange of safety data 
and other safety oversight 
information.

Growth Enabling 
Prospects

Provider of efficient and 
effective aviation services
As aviation is a complex and 
highly regulated business, 
calling for discussion 
between governing and 
regulatory bodies; and 
development of appropriate 
infrastructure. In this 
regard, Botswana has in 
recent years signed Bilateral 
Agreements with other 
countries to facilitate the 
growth of the industry.

Relationship

Bilateral Air Service 
Agreements (BASA)
Bilateral Air Service 
Agreements are concluded 
between two contracting 
states to liberalise 
commercial civil aviation 
services between those 
states. Bilateral air services 
agreements allow for 
designated airlines of those 
states to operate commercial 
flights that cover the 
transport of passengers 
and cargo between the two 
states.

The Civil Aviation Authority 
of Botswana (CAAB) was 
established by the Civil Aviation 
Authority Act, 2004 (CAA Act, 
2004) which mandated CAAB 
to promote aviation safety 
and security and ensure the 
regular and efficient use and 
development of Civil Aviation 
in Botswana.

Annual Report 2017 / 2018 13
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GLOBAL AVIATION AND TOURISM TRENDS

816,170

Global accident 
rate
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+3.6%+7.1%

Global accident rate
(per million scheduled departures)

CLIMATE TARGETS
Improve 1.5%
Aviation will improve its fleet fuel efficiency by an 
average of 1.5% per annum between 2009 and 2020, a 
figure the industry is currently exceeding

Stabilise
From 2020, net carbon emissions from aviation will 
be capped through carbon-neutral growth

Reduce 50%
By 2050, net aviation carbon emissions will be half of 
what they were in 2005.

The air transport industry has made significant 
progress in reducing its environmental impact:
» CO² emissions per seat kilometre
» 70%+ since first jet aircraft 

Perceived noise
» 75%+ since first jets
» Over nine billion tonnes of CO² avoided since 

1990 through a combination of new technology, 
operational efficiencies and infrastructural 
improvements, including airlines spending $3 
trillion on over 25,000 new aircraft

» The industry has invested in new technology, 
better operations and infrastructure 
improvements

» Civil aerospace spends $15 billion per year on 
efficiency-related R&D

» Sustainable aviation fuels could reduce the sector’s 
CO² footprint by as much as 80%. Over 2,200 
commercial flights have taken place so far

» Air traffic management modernisation could save 
millions of tonnes of CO²

Source: Air Transport Action Group 2018

Environmental Progress

International flights increased by 6.8 % 
in 2018.
Source: ICAO 2019

Passengers flying domestically contributing
to a 7.7% growth in 2018

2018 2017

882,605 764 204
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34.6% $2.7 trillion

0.5%

$6 trillion $896.9 billion

$454 billion

$637 billion

$704.4 billion
$61.9 million
tonnes

High value, time sensitive Beyond the Industry

WORLD TRADE BY VALUE

Proportion of global trade transport by air Aviation's global GDP impact, 2018

WORLD TRADE BY VOLUME ECONOMIC BENEFIT (GDP)

Tourism
Catalytic

Induced

Indirect

Aviation Direct

F2018

F2018

Source: ICAO 2019Source: ICAO 2019
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CAAB continues to present 
business opportunities and 
partner with the business 
community to set up businesses 
at major CAAB-managed airports.
Our aim is to provide essential services to Airports 
communities. Each year, we review the progress made that 
is set against our yearly plans and ambitions. 
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our staff, Management team 
and the Board of Directors 
we expect to continually 
drive advancements in 
safety and security across 
the aviation sector in 
Botswana. 

Looking at Botswana’s 
economy, we as a Nation 
continued to realise 
sustainable economic 
growth in the period 
under review within an 
inflation pegged at 3.2%, 
which was in line with 
the Bank of Botswana’s 
target range. This is an 
advantageous situation 
for CAAB, specifically as 
we must closely manage 
our operating costs and 
continually endeavor to 
introduce operational 
efficiencies. During these 
challenging economic 
times, with strains on the 
global, regional and national 
economy, seeing further 
pressure on the minerals 
and commodities sector. 
Botswana still achieved 
4% growth in GDP. This 
is impressive considering 
that while our economy 
continues to diversify, 
we remain substantially 
reliant on mineral revenues, 
especially diamonds. 

This Report is a true 
reflection of CAAB’s 
performance over the 
reporting period 2017/2018, 
through which I will also 
touch on key insights into 
the future of CAAB and 
the aviation sector as a 
whole, specifically looking 
to the horizon through our 
strategic direction
and long-term vision. As 
the Chair of the Board of 
Directors of CAAB, I have a 
unique perspective of the 
operations of CAAB, the 
aviation industry and all 
relevant service providers 
and stakeholders engaged 
and working within the 
sector. As such, I will share 
with you some of our 
achievements and help 
you understand some of 
the challenges we face in 
delivering our mandate, 
whilst striving for aviation 
excellence. 

18 Civil Aviation Authority of Botswana  
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"As the Chair of the Board of Directors of CAAB, I have 
a unique perspective of the operations of CAAB, the 
aviation industry and all relevant service providers and 
stakeholders engaged and working within the sector."

KEY MESSAGES
Striving towards the highest 
standards;

Managing operating costs; and

Increasing operational 
efficiencies.

The cornerstone of our 
mandate, as established 
by the Civil Aviation Act of 
2011, is safety and security of 
Botswana civilian airspace 
and aviation operations, an 
obligation that CAAB takes 
very seriously. We continue 
to strive towards the highest 
standards of safety and 
security, as established 
by the International Civil 
Aviation Organisation 
(ICAO); a body of the
United Nations tasked with 
maintaining and expanding 
international aviation 
safety. Achievement of 
standards and certification 
set by this higher authority 
and monitored through 
International Coordinated 
Validations Missions (ICVM). 
In this regard, to date we 
have achieved a score of 
over 63% compliance, which 
is commendable. Through 
the continued hard work of 

CHAIRPERSON’S 
REPORT

From a financial point 
of view, CAAB continues 
to achieve modest 
improvements year-on-year 
for internally generated 
revenue. This is driven by 
an unwavering attention 
to identifying potential 
operational efficiencies 
and improvement 
on aeronautical/non- 
aeronautical revenue. As 
a civil aviation authority 
operating in a commercial 
space, CAAB is mandated 
to develop and maintain 
aviation infrastructure in 
Botswana on behalf of the 
Government, and in the 
interest of all Batswana, 
whilst generating revenue 
to support operations. Since 
inception, the organisation 
has not yet grown to be self-
sustaining due to the high 
cost of operating the asset 
base dispersed throughout 
the country required to 
deliver on our mandate. 
Hence our revenue is 
supported by subvention 
from Government. 
Aeronautical revenue is 
generated through two 
primary avenues – airport 
taxes and levies – some 
of the lowest in the SADC 
region – and what is referred 
to as fly-overs – gathering 



Mrs. Mpho Judith Dimbungu
Chairperson of the Board
of Directors
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fees from airlines operating 
in Botswana and passing 
over Botswana airspace. 
Non- aeronautical revenues 
come from rental and 
levies from properties and 
concessions within airports 
and other properties. 

Our pressing aim is to 
reduce our dependency on 
the subvention; hence, while 
we offer some of the lowest 

aviation and airport taxes 
in the SADC region, we are 
initiating a programme of 
levy increases to improve 
income and ensure our 
long-term sustainability 
plans are realised.

Furthermore, we continue 
to invest in technology and 
infrastructure, which allows 
us to closely monitor the 
upper airspace of Botswana, 
and attract fly-over revenue, 
which is facilitated by the 
International Air Transport 
Association (IATA). While 
we are largely achieving 
our objectives in this area, 
we will continue to invest 
in infrastructure to cover 
the western borders of 
Botswana and maximise our 
fly-over revenues. 

We continue to explore 
expansionary opportunities 
to work with local service 
providers, advertisers, estate 

developers and concession-
holders to optimise 
retail and commercial 
opportunities at our airports 
to drive non-aeronautical 
revenue generation.

In addition to ICAO, which 
is headquartered in 
Montreal, Canada, there 
are various regulatory 
bodies with whom we 
cooperate, including the 
ICAO Regional Offices in 
Nairobi, Kenya and AFCAC; 
(Dakar, Senegal), and the 
recently established SADC 
Civil Aviation Authority 
(Gaborone, Botswana). In 
terms of aviation security, 
CAAB Chairs the National 
Aviation Security Facilitation 
Committee, which liaises 
with the Botswana Defence 
Force (BDF), Botswana 
Unified Revenue Service 
(BURS), the Intelligence 
Services, Botswana Police 
Service (BPS), Department 

20 Civil Aviation Authority of Botswana  
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We continue to invest 
in technology and 
infrastructure, which 
allows us to closely 
monitor the upper 
airspace of Botswana, and 
attract fly-over revenue 

120 890
TOTAL TRAFFIC MOVEMENT 
that used the Botswana
                      airspace was



burgeoning travel and 
tourism infrastructure and 
development as a whole. 
As this development began 
against the backdrop of the 
completion of upgrades 
to Sir Seretse Khama 
International Airport (SSKIA) 
in Gaborone (GBE); so, 
this development heralds 
the inception of the long- 
awaited modernisation of 
the passenger terminal 
building at Maun 
International Airport 
(MUB) – one of the busiest 
airports in the Southern 
Hemisphere. While Sir 
Seretse Khama International 
Airport is in many ways our 
flagship, Maun will soon 
become the focus of our 
efforts in terms of improving 
customer experience. Plans 
are in place to substantially 
upgrade the out-dated and 
aging terminal buildings 
to cope with the increased 
passengers that cross its 

threshold and transit to 
wilderness airstrips, other 
domestic destinations 
and neighbouring 
countries each year. These 
developments will follow 
upgrades to the Air Traffic 
Tower and Technical Block 
in Maun undertaken in the 
preceding reporting period. 

The aim of the planned 
upgrades is to vastly 
improve the experience of 
all travellers, and provide 
bigger and better facilities 
for CAAB, concessionaires, 
service providers and staff 
to provide excellent service 
to all visitors. Furthermore, 
we will also explore ways 
to expand the scope of 
opportunities that CAAB 
provides for economic 
development and growth 
within, adjacent to, and 
beyond the Maun airport 
footprint. 

On the horizon, beyond 
the Maun upgrades, we are 

CHAIRPERSON'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
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PERFORMANCE 
OVERVIEW

developing a master plan 
for Francistown Airport, 
which we hope will help us 
explore ways to uplift this 
airport, and its surrounding 
grounds/facilities, to provide 
economic opportunities 
that live up to the potential 
of this established facility, 
located so close to the 
busy town centre, and 
neighbouring border 
crossings, and tourism 
corridors. 

While we focus on these 
large projects, we continue 
to monitor the state and 
status of smaller airstrips, 
assessing the viability of 
community infrastructure 
in more remote locations, 
and upgrading runways 
where feasible. During the 
reporting period, Ghanzi 
and Shakawe airstrips 
were resurfaced, and 
we constantly evaluate 
opportunities to improve 
infrastructure across 
the country to expand 
aviation coverage wherever 
economically possible. 

Beyond the safety remit, 
where we believe we are 
achieving our goals, we 
recognise we need to do 

of Immigration, and many 
others. Beyond domestic 
partnerships, CAAB works 
closely with the civil aviation 
authorities of neighbouring 
countries, enjoying 
long-standing and good 
relations with our regional 
neighbours such as South 
Africa, Namibia, Zimbabwe 
and Zambia.

During the period under 
review, our crowning 
achievement was the 
opening of the new, much- 
anticipated passenger 
terminal building at Kasane 
International Airport (BBK), 
which has been under 
development for 3-years. 
This new terminal arrives 
at a time of significant 
growth and development 
in the Chobe District, with 
the impending opening of 
the new Kazungula Bridge, 
which will contribute 
to the District’s already 

CAAB continues to achieve modest
improvements year-on-year for internally 
generated revenue.

Our crowning achievement
was the opening of the new,
much-anticipated passenger terminal
building at Kasane International
Airport (BBK)

02



better in the planning and 
preparedness elements 
of our business. While 
everyone in the aviation 
industry is working to avoid 
incidents, we must be ready 
to respond should such an 
eventuality occur. 

To this end, CAAB, as the 
responsible authority 
in such circumstances, 
is looking closely at 
the requirements and 
infrastructure needed 
to respond should such 
an incident occur. This 
includes establishing 
frameworks of responsibility 
and cooperation with 
all key law enforcement 
and emergency response 

stakeholders should need 
arise. 

In terms of achievement of 
strategic objectives, CAAB 
has reached approximately 
70% of Strategy 2020 
goals, with one year still 
remaining. Looking to the 
future and what will follow 
Strategy 2020, we are keenly 
focused on identifying 
new and innovative 
opportunities to open 
additional revenue streams; 
an objective we hope to 
realise through partnerships 
with the Special Economic 
Zones Authority (SEZA) and 
other key stakeholders. We 
are working closely with 
SEZA to firmly establish 
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The aim of the planned 
upgrades is to vastly 
improve the experience 
of all travellers, and 
provide bigger and 
better facilities for CAAB, 
concessionaires, service 
providers and staff to 
provide excellent service 
to all visitors.

2018

STRATEGY

70%
of 2020 Strategy 
Objectives were 
reached, with one 
year still remaining



special economic zones 
around each of our major 
airports, intended to 
bolster economic activity 
and provide business and 
employment opportunities 
for those working in 
and associated with our 
demanding supply chains 
and complementary 
industries. Further to the 
outsourcing of security 
and custodial services, we 
aim to expand tourism 
potential, and foster 
technology partnerships 
that will stimulate growth 
and benefit the airport and 
our visitors. We recognise 
our position in each of 
the communities within 
which we operate and 

acknowledge the potential 
role we can play in local 
growth. This role can go 
beyond the employment of 
custodial/cleaning and non-
aviation security staff and 
include the vital services of 
bush and ground clearance, 
and maintenance and 
construction staff, which we 
consider as our contribution 
to social responsibility.

While we follow three to 
five year strategic cycles, 
CAAB must look further 
forward, and explore the 
potential Botswana has to 
truly become the home of 
SADC and spread its wings 
to grow into a regional 
aviation hub in ten years 

and beyond; attracting 
more international carriers 
and providing cargo and 
logistics solutions for the 
region. We believe this is 
attainable, considerably 
the central geographical 
location of our country in 
the SADC region. 

In conclusion, I would like 
to thank the members of 
the CAAB Board for their 
support and dedication 
in the execution of their 
duties, and participation in 
sub-committees - Finance, 
Audit and Risk; Human 
Resources; Tender; and 
Technical. Through their 
hard work and leadership, 
we are able to deliver our 

mandate, growing a safe, 
secure and inclusive aviation 
sector in Botswana. Under 
their guidance, the CAAB 
Management Team and 
entire staff brings to bear 
decades of aviation skills 
and experience, through 
which they support and 
empower our staff to 
achieve our vision of being 
a world class provider of 
safe, secure and sustainable 
aviation services.

Finally, I must extend my 
sincere thanks to the entire 
airline industry and aviation 
sector, I look forward to 
their continued support 
and cooperation moving 
forward. 
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sufficient revenue to cover 
the expansive costs of the 
above was pushed to the 
limit. 

As I am sure any reader of 
this Report will understand 
and our accounts disclosed 
herein will testify, aviation 
is an expensive business; 
as maintenance of airports, 
runway surfaces, technical 
facilities on airport aprons, 
air traffic control, terminal 
buildings all require 
significant investment and 
maintenance resources – 
physical and financial.

Under any circumstances 
each one of these arms of 
our mandate would be a 
challenging mantle to bear, 
but to undertake all three 
simultaneously requires 
commitment, technical 
expertise and facilities, 
and the necessary human 
and financial resources. 
In the year under review 
– 2017/2018 - even despite 
the generous subvention 
from Government these 
elements weighed heavily 
upon us at CAAB, meaning 
that our ability to generate 
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The Civil Aviation Authority of Botswana 
(CAAB) has a tripartite mandate:

- To manage and develop the Nation’s 
airports and supporting infrastructure 
and sites;

- To operate and ensure the safety and 
security of aeronautical airspace in and 
above Botswana; and

- To regulate the aviation industry for the 
safety and security of all Batswana, and 
all visitors within our borders.

In Botswana, we levy the 
lowest aeronautical and 
airport tax fee regime 
in the SADC region, all 
while maintaining high 
standards of infrastructure 
specification, safety 
and security; a situation 
reaffirmed by the latest 
ICAO inspection, which 
has yielded positive results 
once again. In an attempt 
to increase revenue to 
contribute to our annual 
costs, CAAB is currently in 
the process of negotiating 
the raising of these fees. 



Once the increase in fees 
has been approved, we are 
hoping to mitigate financial 
pressure through increased 
airport taxes and increased 
aeronautical revenues.

Furthermore, we continue 
to explore mechanisms to 
increase non-aeronautical 
revenues by leveraging our 
airport land assets. While 
this was previously to be 
explored alone as CAAB, 
we are now integrating our 
approaches with the Special 
Economic Zones Authority 
(SEZA), which through our 
on-going master planning 
process – developing 
master plans for all major 
airports in succession – 
will seek to harmonise 

special economic zone 
opportunities, foster growth 
and hopefully ensure our 
long-term sustainability. 
As we complete the Sir 
Seretse Khama International 
Airport (SSKI) Master 
Plan and initiate the 
Francistown Airport Master 
Plan, we will soon move 
on to the development of 
a similar plan for Kasane 
International airport, 
leveraging the recent 
opening of the new 
passenger terminal in 
this burgeoning region of 
Botswana which continues 
to prepare for the soon to be 
opened Kazungula Bridge 
to Zambia. In future, we 
will continue this master 
planning process in Maun. 

This will follow the already 
completed Air Traffic Tower 
and Technical Block, and 
the soon to be executed and 
long-awaited expansion and 
upgrade of the passenger 
terminal, and supporting 
facilities planned for the 
next financial year.

Finally, we seek to continue 
our hard work to gather 
overflight revenue via 
IATA, from airlines landing 
within, and flying over 
Botswana. This is supported 
by expanded radar 
infrastructure in western 
Botswana, helping us 
complete coverage and 
maximising our income 
from this valuable source.

Aviation Safety
During the reporting 
period, CAAB received our 
annual International Civil 
Aviation Organisation (ICAO) 
Coordinated Validation 
Mission (CVM), and while 
we currently await results, 
preliminary indications 
show we reached 63% on 
Safety requirements, and 
68% on Security. While our 
targets were 70% in each 
category, and changes we 
are implementing right now 
to bring these scores closer 
to our targets, these scores 
are well above African 
average scores on both 
counts.

Accreditation
While CAAB has a large 
staff compliment, we 
face constant challenges 
retaining sufficient staff 
to enable us to deliver our 
entire three-part mandate. 
Specific challenges remain 
with keeping pace with 
training of staff to match 

Mr. Kabo Phutietsile
Chief Executive Officer (Acting) 
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the seemingly constant 
introduction of new 
aircraft by international 
and domestic airlines. This 
training is crucial for us 
to be able to license and 
inspect said aircraft. Again, 
this presents a challenge 
as we seek to expand the 
regional role and footprint 
of Botswana as a regional 
hub for air travel.

While we work to establish 
a full complement of 
Executive staff to deliver our 
mandate, the hard work and 
technically skilled staff of 

CAAB carry us forward as we 
continue to transition from 
the legacy of a parastatal 
to a regulatory authority 
intended to operate 
commercially.

Governance
As with all parastatal organs 
of state, CAAB is under 
close scrutiny in terms of 
governance and financial 
management. While we are 
aware of our short comings 
and are working diligently 
to resolve them; we rely on 
the strength of individuals 
and our technical and 
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CAAB is 
an active 
partner 
in the 
development 
of Botswana 
as a country.



administrative teams to 
carry us forward while 
we establish the rigorous 
governance structures 
we require to sustain the 
Authority into the future.

Infrastructure
Despite the above 
challenges, we are 
proudest of our ongoing 
progress towards world 
class infrastructure, and a 
safety record that with the 
exception of our esteemed 
neighbour South Africa, 
is one of the highest in 
the region in terms of 
implementation of safety 
standards. When one 
considers our population to 
international airport ratio, it 
is impressive, as we operate 
and maintain the necessary 
real estate, infrastructure, 
terminal buildings, air-traffic 
control, safety equipment, 
concessionaires and staff 
complements for four 
international airports across 
a vast land mass.

During the period under 
review, we are proud to 
have completed and 
handed-over the Kasane 
passenger terminal project, 
the Maun airport air traffic 
control upgrades, and 

upgraded equipment to 
better monitor overflight 
and provide improved 
aeronautical navigation.

Our role in 
economic 
development
Despite the challenges 
we face, CAAB is an active 
partner in the development 
of Botswana as a country.

As the travel and tourism 
industry firmly establishes 
itself as one of the largest 
economic sectors in 
Botswana, exhibiting 
year on year growth for 
international and regional 
tourism, CAAB is proud to 
support this growth. 

Furthermore, we aim to 
continue to grow our role 
in this expansion, with 
improved facilities and 
special economic zone 
activities at all of our 
international and domestic 
airports and airfields, 
especially considering 
the planned upgrades in 
Maun slated for the coming 
financial year.

As we approach the final 
years of our current five-year 
Strategy, we realise that 
while including stretching 
goals is part of any strategy 
process, we may have been 
unrealistic in terms of some 
of our strategic objectives, 
given our resource and 
financial constraints. Moving 
towards the development 
of the next strategic 

process, we need to ensure 
we properly resource our 
strategy office; look to 
increase our airport traffic, 
marketing our airports to 
the country and the world, 
establishing our airspace; 
and ensure our outlook is 
supported by an airport-
competitive strategy.

Corporate Social 
Responsibility and 
staff development
During the period under 
review, CAAB played 
an active role in the 
development and delivery of 
World Telcommunications 
Day, which was celebrated 
in Botswana, and we 
continue to absorb interns 
and short-term staff 
placements into the full-
time staff complement; 
recognising that it is difficult 
to find well-trained aviators, 
and as such growing this 
capacity internally.

Gratitude
During this challenging 
period, I would like to 
thank the Board of 
Directors for their support 
in realising our current 
and recently completed 
projects, specifically the 
new passenger terminal at 
Kasane, and hope we retain 
such support as we move 
to further develop Maun 
Airport. We continue to 
thank the Government of 
Botswana for the generous 
subvention we receive 
annually. We thank AFCAC 
and the regional ICAO 
office in Nairobi, Kenya 
who continue to provide 
expertise and advice 
throughout our safety and 
security auditing cycle, and 
finally, and by no means 
least, the staff at CAAB.

Overflight Picture

In January 2018, CAAB 
commenced a major 
project of runway 
rehabilitation at Ghanzi 
airfield awarded to 
Trown Holding (Pty) 
Ltd for an amount of 

P2,258,252.50.
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BOARD MEMBERS

Mr. Mark John 
Sampson

Board Chairman
(Resigned:
November 2018)

Mr. Mark John Sampson was first 
appointed Chairman of the Civil 
Aviation Authority of Botswana 
in April 2011. Captain Sampson is 
a veteran Pilot, having received 
his wings in 1974. He became 
an airline Captain in 1980 and 
was one of the first citizens to 
get this qualification. Captain 
Sampson has more than 16 000 
hours flying time and has been 
an Advanced Flight Instructor for 
over 20 years.

Mrs. Mpho Judith 
Dimbungu     

Chairperson
(Appointed:
November 2018)

Mrs. Mpho Judith Dimbungu 
is currently running her own 
Business.  She was appointed 
to the Civil Aviation Authority of 
Botswana as Board Chairperson 
on 1st  November 2018. Mrs. 
Dimbungu has previously 
served as Special Board Member 
of Finance and Audit, in Civil 
Aviation Authority of Botswana 
(CAAB) for four years.  She 
is a professional Associate 
member of Chartered Global 
Management Accountant, 
Chartered Accountant, 
BICA, Certified Institute of 
Management Accountant, CIMA.  
She is a Master of Business 
Administration (MBA) graduate, 
and a holder of International 
Executive Development 
Programme - Wits Business 
School and in London School of 
business (IEDP).  

She has worked as Head 
of Finance and IT at DTC 
Botswana, Finance Manager, 
Botswana Diamond Valuing 
Company for three year, Group 
Management Accountant, 
Debswana, Group Management, 
De Beers Consolidated Mine, 
Management Accountant, 
Debswana Diamond Co. - 
Jwaneng Mine.

She has served on a number 
of Boards, including that of 
Broadhurst Primary School as 
Board Member and Chairperson, 
Debswana ARV Fund Trustees, 
Debswana Pension Fund Board 
of Trustees.

Mr. Kabo Phutietsile    

Acting Chief Executive 
Officer and Ex Officio
Board Member
(Appointed: January 2019)

Mr. Kabo Phutietsile currently 
serves as the Director of 
Airport Engineering and 
Maintenance at CAAB, a 
role he has held since 2014. 
Amongst his responsibilities 
at present is to coordinate 
all engineering functions, 
including the implementation 
of Airport capital projects and 
maintenance activities; develop 
engineering standards and 
planning guidelines in line with 
aviation sector international 
standards; and coordinate 
the development of planned 
maintenance systems. He joined 
CAAB in 2009, having previously 
worked as Deputy Director 
and Chief Engineer - Safety 
Standards and Instrumentation. 

Mr. Phutietsile’s professional 
experience also includes 
time spent at Ministry of 
Communications Science and 
Technology. He is a former 
officer of the Botswana 
Defence Force. Mr. Phutietsile 
holds a Master of Business 
Administration degree (De 
Montfort University, United 
Kingdom); Bachelor of Science 
in Aviation Technology and 
Science (Embry-Riddle 
Aeronautical University, USA); 
Diploma in Project Management 
(Cambridge International, 
United Kingdom); Senior 
Management Development 
Programme (Stellenbosch 
Business School, RSA); and 
Change Agent Training 
and Leadership Strategies 
(CATALYST) (Transformation 
Systems International, USA). 

Mr. Phutietsile also holds a 
number of industry relevant 
licences.

Mr. Geoffrey 
Puseletso 
Moshabesha    

Chief Executive Officer and 
Ex Officio Board Member 
(Resigned: December 2018)

Mr. Geoffrey Puseletso 
Moshabesha assumed duty 
as Chief Executive Officer of 
the Civil Aviation Authority of 
Botswana on the 5th January 
2015.

Mr. Moshabesha has over 45 
years’ experience in the aviation 
industry. He served his native 
country, Lesotho, as Director 
of Civil Aviation before joining 
the International Civil Aviation 
Organisation (ICAO) at its  Head 
Office in Montreal, Canada, and 
as well as  ICAO Regional Office 
(Nairobi, Kenya)  as Director 
for the Eastern and Southern 
Africa Region. He served ICAO 
for a cumulative period of over 
15 years.

A well-rounded aviation 
professional, Mr. Moshabesha 
has also been a Civil Aviation 
Management Adviser to various 
Southern African Governments 
including Botswana, 
Mozambique and Zambia. 

He holds a BSc (Aviation 
Administration) and MBA 
(Aviation Administration) all 
acquired from the Embry Riddle 
Aeronautical University, Florida, 
USA.



Mr. Thembinkosi 
Johnson  

Board Member

Mr. Thembinkosi Johnson is a 
Pilot by Profession. He joined the 
Botswana Defence Force in 1987 
and retired from active military 
service at the rank of Lt Colonel 
in October 2011 after 24 years of 
service.

A helicopter Pilot, Mr. Johnson 
qualified as a Pilot in April 
1990. In 1994, four years later, 
he became a qualified Flying 
Instructor. He was appointed a 
Squadron Commander. Later, 
in 2006, he joined the VVIP 
squadron as Chief Helicopter 
Pilot.

He is currently running a 
Defence and Aviation Services 
consultancy that deals with 
defence procurement and other 
associated aviation services. 
He was appointed to the Civil 
Aviation Authority of Botswana 
Board in February 2016.

Mr. Leslie John 
Trotter   

Board Member

Mr. Leslie Trotter was appointed 
to the Civil Aviation Authority of 
Botswana Board in 1 July 2016. 
He is currently a Coordinator 
of Aviation Support in the 
Department of Wildlife and 
National Parks in the Ministry of 
Environment, Natural Resources 
Conservation and Tourism.

An accredited Ground School 
Instructor and a designated Pilot 
Examiner, he got his wings in 
1985. He had served previously as 
Operations Director of Kalahari 
Air Services and Managing 
Director of Executive Charter 
Botswana. He has more than 8 
563 flying hours.

Before flying, he was a teacher 
both in Zimbabwe and 
Botswana.

Mr. Asad Petkar   

Board Member

Mr. Asad Petkar is currently the 
Chief Operating Officer and a 
shareholder at EOH Consulting, 
a management consultancy 
firm. He was appointed to 
the Board of the Civil Aviation 
Authority of Botswana in 
January 2016.

Throughout his career of over 
15 years, Mr. Petkar has focused 
on developing and applying 
innovative solutions in a 
number of areas that focused 
on Corporate Performance 
Improvement.

His consulting experience has 
covered a number of areas in 
strategy development, audit and 
execution training and project 
management, amongst others.

Mr. Petkar is a fellow of the 
Advanced Performance Institute 
(API), which provides research, 
consulting and training in 
Performance Management 
to organisations globally. In 
addition, he is a Certified 
Balanced Scorecard Practitioner.

A Master in Commerce 
(Information Technology) 
graduate, has served on a 
number of Boards in Botswana.
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Mr. Anthony 
Glyndwr Rees 

Board Member
(Resigned: October 2017)

Mr. Anthony Glyndwr Rees is a 
Chartered Civil Engineer and a 
Fellow of the Chartered Institute 
of Highways and Transportation. 
He is the Managing Director 
and sole shareholder of Haas 
Consult-SRA (Pty) Ltd with over 
50 years' professional experience 
as Resident Engineer, Roads 
Engineer Geotechnical/
Materials Engineer and Project 
Manager/Director for numerous 
construction projects and new 
roads projects throughout Africa. 
He holds a BSc (Hons) from the 
University of Wales.

Mr. Rees is a founding member 
of CAAB Board.
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EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT TEAM

Mr. Kabo Phutietsile    

Director - Airport Engineering and 
Maintenance

Mr. Christopher Ferguson

Director - Aviation Flight Safety and 
Oversight

Mr. Maitseo Pelaelo   

Manager - Aviation Security and 
Facilitation Oversight

Mr. Silas Silas

Director - Air Navigation Services

Mr. Moses Leselwa 

Director - Airport Services

Mr. Geoffrey Puseletso 
Moshabesha    

Chief Executive Officer
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Mr. Monti Tlagae    

Manager - Air Transport

Mr. Lebone Peter Sedingwe

Director - Corporate Services 

Ms. Otsetswe Keletso
Koboyankwe    

Corporate Secretary

Mr. Caswell Stephen    

Manager - Aviation Standards and 
Safety Oversight

Mr. Kealeboga Mogaetsho    

Manager - Internal Audit

Mr. Modipe Chris Nkwe    

Chief Public Affairs Officer
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Managing the operations of the 
CAAB against the breadth of our 
National geography is a complex 
task, but one we do with the 
utmost commitment to excellence. 
Here, we share reports on the operations of the CAAB and in 
line with our corporate strategy. 
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Aircraft registered during 
the 2017/2018 period

2018 2017

12 15

HIGHLIGHTS

Corporate 
Strategy 

The Civil Aviation Authority 
of Botswana (CAAB)’s 
Strategic Plan 2015-2020’s 
aims to transform CAAB into 
an effective and innovative 
regulator that contributes 
to the development 
of a sustainable and 
environmentally friendly 
aviation industry. 

This will be achieved by 
investing in human capital 
and increasing revenue to 
sustain the operations of 
the organisation. Revenue 
generation will assist in 
facilitating the growth of 
the Aviation Industry in 
Botswana. Facilitated by 
the establishment of the 
Corporate Planning Office, 
CAAB has placed significant 
emphasis on achievement 
and implementation of the 
Strategy whose target is 
effectively and efficiently 
regulation and promotion 
of a safe, secure and 
sustainable aviation industry 
in line with international 
standards and norms.

Pursuant to these goals, the 
year under review has seen 
progress in the following 
areas:

In terms of Aviation Safety 
CAAB has achieved an 
Effective Implementation 
(EI) of ICAO Standards and 
Recommended Practices 
of 64.15 %, which is higher 
than African average of 
46.39% and global average 
of 62.68%. Although CAAB 
is targeting an Effective 
Implementation (EI) of 
70%, ICAO has applauded 
Botswana for maintaining 
an almost world average 
compliance, further 

recognising the country’s 
commitment to achieving 
the highest possible level 
of compliance against 
international aviation 
standards.

In May 2016, an ICAO Aviation 
Security audit yielded results 
of 69.97% and no Significant 
Security Concerns; a 39.89% 
improvement on the 2008 
audit. By way of follow-up to 
this audit, CAAB submitted 
Corrective Action Plan 
progress to the Regional 
ICAO Eastern and Southern 
Africa Office in Nairobi, 
Kenya.

The period also saw a 
0.6% increase in aircraft 
movement, and a 5.8% 
increase in passenger traffic 
(building on a trend started 
in 2016/2017), illustrating 
progress towards the 
implementation of the 
Open Skies Policy. These 
increases are due largely to 
the five airlines operating 
directly or under code-
share in Botswana Skies 
- Air Botswana, Air Namibia, 
Ethiopian Airlines, SA Airlink 
and South African Express, 
with direct connections 
between Botswana and 
major airports in South 
Africa, Namibia, Ethiopia 
and in the near future 
Zimbabwe, Zambia, and 
Qatar. These growth figures 
reinforce National statistics 
indicating a growth in the 
importance of tourism, travel 
and hospitality to Botswana’s 
GDP.

In addition to realising 
the outstanding strategic 
objectives, the current focus 
of the Corporate Planning 
Office is the development of 
the subsequent strategy for 
2020 to 2025, which we hope 
will build on the significant 

growth seen in the current 
five year strategic planning 
window and the period 
under review.

Air Navigation 
Through the period under 
review, the Directorate of 
Air Navigation Services 
ensured that facilities and 
services required to safely 
and efficiently operate the 
Nation’s major airports, 
control areas and air routes/
airways were maintained, 
despite limited resources.

Communications have been 
improved across the country 
with upgraded Air Traffic 
Control Services in New 
Control Towers equipped 
with latest communications 
systems were commissioned 
at both Maun and Kasane 
Airports. The older 
Conventional Omni-
directional Radio Range 
and Distance Measuring 
Equipment (CVOR.DME) at 
Kang airfield was replaced 
with a new one. This project 
included the replacement 
of Maun and Kasane DVOR/
DME systems which will 
commence during the 
2018/19 financial year.

34 Civil Aviation Authority of Botswana  
Annual Report 2017 / 2018

P
E

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E



The Primary Surveillance 
Radar at SSKIA and 
Monopulse Secondary 
Surveillance Radar at SSKIA 
and Maun were upgraded 
to Mode Select capability; 
thus enabling them to 
interrogate aircraft of all 

categories. A new Radar 
was commissioned at 
Letlhakane village.

Air Navigation Services 
participated in
stakeholder activities at 
the Makgadikgadi Epic, 
Race for Rhinos, Matsieng 
Airshow, a ministerial event 
at Tutume, and World 
Telecommunications Day at 
Thamaga village. 

Challenges facing the 
Directorate includes the 
replacement of navigation 
systems at SSKIA and 
Francistown as well as 
training of young personnel 
that will take over the 
current ageing staff for 
continuity of services and 
succession planning.

Flight Safety 
Oversight (FSO)
The Flight Safety Oversight 
(FSO) realised a number of 
significant achievements 
during the period under 
review. April 2017 saw 
the certification of Major 
Blue Air as an Approved 
Maintenance Organisation 
(AMO) to provide aircraft 
maintenance services in 
Botswana.

Since the promulgation 
of the new Civil Aviation 
(Approved Maintenance 
Organisations) Regulations 
in 2012, FSO has had the 
opportunity to implement 
a Five Phase Certification 
of Major Blue Air as the 

second first-time applicant 
certified in accordance with 
the Five Phase certification 
process prescribed in AMO 
Regulation (2012). This 
was a major achievement 
as the exercise closed a 
number of ICAO protocol 
questions thus positively 
impacting the effective 
implementation of 
regulations.

The reporting period under 
review saw the beginning 
of preparations for the 
2017/2018 USOAP Audit 
with the hosting of ROST 
Mission from ICAO Regional 
Office reviewing readiness 
for the upcoming audit . 
The audit covered all audit 
functions with the exception 
of Aerodromes and Ground 
Aids (AGA).
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In the March 2018 Audit, 
Botswana attained an 
Effective implementation 
(EI) of 64.15%, which is 
notable achievement higher 
than the SADC average of 
56.95% and Africa average of 
55.88%.

Out of all the Aviation Safety 
functions, Airworthiness 
continues to score higher, 
attaining an Effective 
Implementation (EI) of 75%. 

A significant highlight 
of the reporting period 
was the recruitment of 16 
new inspectors, covering 
Personnel Licensing, 
Flight Operations 
and Airworthiness. All 
recruited staff underwent 
Government Safety 
Inspectors Courses, guided 
by the areas of specialization 
resulting in more qualified 
personnel ready to join 
the industry. Furthermore, 
FSO approved four (4) 
foreign Approved Training 
Organisations (ATOs) and 
their Flight Simulation 
Training Devices used for 
ATR 42/72 and Embraer 
170 Flight Crew Training 
and testing, a critical 
achievement in line with 
aircraft operating in the Air 
Botswana Fleet improving 
safety. A first for the country.

In response to the rapid 
proliferation of Remotely 
Piloted Aircraft ( RPAs 
-Drones) in the country, 
FSO developed regulations 
governing the piloting and 
operating of drones. During 
the reporting period, FSO 
issued 196 approval drone 
licences. 

To support effective service 
delivery and reduce 
customer complainants, 
FSO developed an issue 
tracking system to monitor 

tasks associated with service 
delivery. CAAB now aims 
to scale this system out to 
the rest of the Authority 
to support ongoing 
institutional efficiencies. 
It is in the same review 
period that an Embraer E170 
aircraft was registered in 
Botswana. 

Looking to the future, 
FSO hopes to increase 
effective implementation 
of international aviation 
standards through 
recruitment and training 
of additional inspectors 
in Gaborone and Maun 
to improve aviation safety 
oversight at CAAB and 
across Botswana. It is hoped 
that the following reporting 
period will see procurement 
of a technology platform 
for facilitating surveillance 
activities and tracking 
resolution of deficiencies 
identified.

Air Transport 
We now turn our 
attention to the collection, 
compilation, management 
and analysis of air traffic 
movement data across 
Botswana, an area that 
while essential to the 
aviation industry remains 
a challenge for CAAB due 
to inadequate staffing 
levels. However, plans 
are being developed to 
increase human resources to 
adequately undertake these 
tasks for the two busiest 
airports in the country, Sir 
Seretse Khama International 
and Maun International 
Airports.

Air Traffic 
Movements (ATMs)
Following a decline from the 
recent high of over 85,000 
flights in financial year 

2013/2014, there has been an 
upward trend in air traffic 
movement over the past 
three years, culminating in 
80,322 flights in the period 
under review, an increase 
of 4.8% over the preceding 
period. The main contributor 
to these movements 
is Maun International 
Airport, with 61% of traffic 
movements, followed by 
19.6% for Sir Seretse Khama 
International Airport and 
16.2% for Kasane, with 
Francistown International, 
Selebi Phikwe and Ghanzi 
sharing the remaining 
3.2%. Maun retains this 
large percentage due to 
the high volume of non- 
scheduled flight operations 
from Maun International 
Airport to airstrips across the 
Okavango Delta.
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Passenger Traffic
The period under review 
saw an increase of 7.2% in 
passenger traffic numbers 
from the previous reporting 
period, from 764,204 to 
819,503. It is anticipated that 
this growth will continue 
into the foreseeable future 
as a number of passenger 
airlines have indicated 
interest in operations to 
and through Botswana’s 
airports. The most recent 
addition has been the 
weekly (Thursday) Air 
Namibia route from Hosea 
Kutako International Airport 
(Windhoek, Namibia) via Sir 
Seretse Khama International 
Airport (Gaborone) to King 
Shaka International Airport 
(Durban, South Africa). 20
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Botswana Air Traffic Financial 
Years 2013/14 - 2017/18

The majority of commercial 
passenger airline operations 
takes place through the 
four international airports 
– Sir Seretse Khama, Maun, 
Kasane, and Francistown 
International Airports. The 
bulk of passenger traffic 
is handled at Sir Seretse 
Khama International 
Airport, with 52.3% of total 
numbers, followed by Maun 
and Kasane International 
Airports with 30.8% and 
12.3% respectively. 

Francistown International 
Airport saw a very small 
percentage of overall traffic 
at 4.6%, with passenger 
numbers for this airport 
falling by 8.1% (a fall of 3,059) 
from the preceding year.
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Increase of passenger
traffic by 7.2% to a total of 

819,503
during the review period
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Overflight 
Movements
Another critical element of 
Air Transport Movement 
data is over-flights 
movements – the number 
of flights passing through 
Botswana airspace which 
attracts fly-over revenue. 

Flight numbers have seen 
growth in recent years, with 
a 5.8% increase recorded 
for the period under 
review. Reviewing the data 
presented the chart below, 
it can also be seen that 
over flight numbers have 
largely increased quarter by 

quarter, with the exception 
of Q1 of 2016/2017, which 
was lower than expected. 
This pattern of overflight 
movement illustrates the 
potential for steady increase 
in  revenue from airlines 
flying through Botswana 
airspace.



Infrastructure 
Upgrade and 
Maintenance

Airport Upgrades and 
Maintenance
CAAB has a duty to ensure 
all airports and airfields in 
Botswana are in safe and 
usable conditions at all 
times. As such, the Authority 
continuously carries out 
maintenance works and 
upgrades of existing airports 
and airfields. During the 
period under review (April 
2017 to March 2018), CAAB 
carried out a number of 
maintenance services and 
developments in all our 
major airports and airfields.

Sir Seretse Khama 
International Airport 
(SSKIA)
The SSKIA Land Use Master 
Plan, which is a blueprint 
for the future development 
of the airport in the short to 
long term, was approved by 

the Gaborone City Council 
Planning Board in June 
2015. CAAB had planned 
to appoint a Transaction 
Advisor to assist with the 
funding models for the 
development of the basic 
infrastructure. However, 
the appointment of the 
Transaction Advisor was 
aborted following the 
Government Directive 
directing  the Authority 
to join hands with the 
Special Economic Zone 
Authority (SEZA) who opted  
to carry out their Master 
Plan. This  collaboration 
between both SEZA and 
CAAB in the development 
of the CAAB Land resulted 
in a Memorandum of 
Agreement being signed by 
the two parties in July 2017.

Kasane International 
Airport (KIA)
The project for the Terminal 
expansion and associated 
buildings (Air Traffic Control 
Tower, Technical Block, 
Fire Station and Police 
Station) was completed 
in November 2017 upon 
which the one-year Defects 
Liability commenced. The 
project was completed at a 
total cost of P425 million. A 
Passenger Terminal Building 
for Kasane International 
Airport is designed to cater 
for a peak hour passenger of 
230 (departing and arriving) 
at an IATA (International Air 
Transport Association) Level 
of Service C with the peak 
expected to be reached 
in 2030. The peak hour 
passenger corresponds to 
150-seater aircraft equivalent 
to a Boeing 737 or Airbus 
A319. The Passenger 
Terminal Building will be 
able to handle 387,000 
passengers annually.

The Terminal Building was 
of officially opened on 22 
February 2018.

Francistown 
International Airport 
(FIA) Master Plan
CAAB engaged a Consultant 
to assist in the development 
of a Master Plan for 
Francistown International 
Airport. The Master Plan will 
be the guiding document 
for the future development 
of the airport up to the year 
2040 and would also assist 
in transforming Francistown 
Airport into a commercial 
entity through the following 
interventions:

• Developing and 
enhancing non- 
aeronautical revenue 
sources;

• Transforming FIA into 
a vibrant commercial 
centre; and

• Assessing issues that 
impact the aviation 
industry locally and 
internationally over the 
years.

The consultancy for the 
Master Plan commenced 
in January 2018 and is 
expected to be completed 
within forty (40) weeks.

Maun International 
Airport
The Air Traffic Control 
Tower and Technical 
Block construction 
works was awarded to 
Colic Construction and 
Development Company 
(Pty) Ltd for P85,680,000.00. 
Construction works were 
completed and handed over 
to CAAB in May 2016. The 
project is in Defects Liability 
Period ending May 2017. 

The New Maun Terminal 
Building is still in the 
planning stage. The current 
Airport terminal building 
has been experiencing 
passenger congestion due 
to a surge in the number of 

passengers at peak hour. 
In November 2017, CAAB 
engaged a Consultant 
to carry out a study on 
passenger movement in 
order to determine the 
effects of the passenger 
influx in the terminal. 
The Consultant was also 
to provide CAAB with 
recommendations on how 
to curb and address the 
congestion.

CAAB adopted 
the Consultant’s 
recommendation of carrying 
out major renovations 
works to the existing 
terminal building. This 
recommendation suggests 
for the construction of 
additional halls and lounges, 
Increased concourse, 
check-in areas and other 
associated works to 
decongest the Terminal 
building and provide better 
customer experience. 
Construction works for this 
project are anticipated to 
commence mid-2018.
  
Other Airfields 
Maintenance
CAAB carries routine 
maintenance on its airfields 
on annual bases. Major 
maintenance is carried out 
depending on the condition 
of the facility at the time of 
planning.

In January 2018, CAAB 
commenced a major 
runway rehabilitation 
project at Ghanzi aerodrome 
awarded to Trown Holding 
Pty Ltd for an amount of 
P2,258,252.50. 
Shakawe and Gumare is 
on a year-long Defects 
Liability Period of runway 
rehabilitation ended which 
will end in the next review 
period.
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Aviation 
Security and 
Facilitation 
Oversight
As part of our oversight 
role, the Aviation Security 
and Facilitation Oversight 
regulator is highly focused 
on quality control measures 

with respect to all aspects of 
national civil aviation security 
systems. This includes 
issues related to security 
measures at airports, aircraft, 
passengers, cabin and hold 
baggage, cargo and mail. 

The above is in in addition 
to being responsible for 
Standards for training, 
qualification of security 

personnel and measures 
relating to effective 
response to Acts of unlawful 
interference. Improving 
on previous performance 
and in pursuance of 
our oversight role, we 
convened two meetings of 
the National Civil Aviation 
Security and Facilitation 
Committee (NCASFC), an 
achievement supported 

In January 2018, 
CAAB commenced 
a major project of 
runway rehabilitation 
at Ghanzi airfield 
awarded to Trown 
Holding Pty Ltd 
for an amount of 
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by intervention from the 
Minister of Transport and 
Communications. To achieve 
this outcome, the Minister 
engaged the Ministry of 
Finance and Economic 
Development, the Ministry 
of Defence, Justice and 
Security; and the Ministry of 
Nationality, Immigration and 
Gender Affairs. These parties 
were sensitised to the 
importance of supporting 
this critical apparatus, which 
aids compliance to the 
International Civil Aviation 
Organisation as regards 
Aviation Security and 
Facilitation Standards and 
Recommended Practices 
(SARPs).

Appropriate function 
of this vital committee 
enabled revision of National 
Civil Aviation Security 
Programmes, which 
were overdue for review. 
This revision addressed 
provisions of Annex 17 
(Aviation Security) issued 
during the May 2016 
Universal Security Audit 
Programme Continuous 
Monitoring Approach (USAP 
CMA) Audit. The revised 
programmes, subsequently 
distributed to the industry 
for implementation, 
providing direction for 
addressing the findings of 
the May 2016 Audit. While 
ASFO continues to face 
challenges associated with 
limited financial resources, 
which may constrain its 
ability to provide adequate 
state aviation security 
and facilitation oversight, 
the oversight function 
benefitted from the 
European Union-funded 
Civil Aviation Security in 
Africa and the Arabian 
Peninsula (CASE) Project.

This initiative supports 
capacity building and 
enabled staff to attend two 
activities related to Security 

Culture and Air Cargo & Mail 
Security. 

Looking to the future, we 
await Board approval of 
the revised business unit 
operational organisational 
structure, which will also 
contribute to addressing 
the outcomes of the 
May 2016 USAP CMA 
Audit. Specifically, this 
reorganisation will address 
human resource allocation 
to effectively fulfil l national 
and international obligations 
related to the regulation and 
oversight of aviation security 
activities in the country. 

Furthermore, the security 
and facilitation oversight 
team intend to submit 
progress made on the 
corrective action plan for the 
May 2016 Audit to the ICAO 
East and Southern Africa 
Regional Office, improving 
Botswana’s Average 
Compliance with respect to 
Annexes 9 & 17 SARPs.

Aviation 
Standards 
& Safety 
Oversight
Search and Rescue is a 
state obligation within the 
Chicago Convention, which 
was ratified by Botswana in 
1978.

Article 25 of the Convention 
obliges signatory states to 
provide Search and Rescue 
functions at a national level, 
a function that is regulated 
internationally by ICAO.
In order to comply with 
these international 
regulations, member states 
must establish
a National Search and 
Rescue Coordination 
Committee (NSARCC), 
whose objective is to direct 

and ensure coordinated and 
effective search and rescue 
services. In compliance
with this requirement, 
the Minister of Transport 
and Communications 
inaugurated the Botswana 
NSARCC in November 
2016. While the NSARCC 
was established over two 
years prior to the period 
under review, an ongoing 
challenge for Aviation 
Standard and Safety 
Oversight remains poor 
attendance of NSARCC 
committee meetings, driven 
by challenges securing the 
time and attendance of 
senior officials. 

African Ministers responsible 
for civil aviation at the 
Ministerial Conference on 
Aviation Safety (2012) agreed 
on a number of safety 
milestones amongst which 
was establishment of an 
effective and operational 
Search and Rescue 
organisation
.
During the period under 
review, the Aviation 
Standards and Safety 
Oversight of CAAB achieved 
an improved state Effective 
Implementation (EI) score 
of 63.1% for Air Navigation 
service during a full audit, 
which is above the Global 
Air Safety Target of 60%. In 
order to further improve 
EI beyond the current 61%, 
Aviation Standard and 
Safety Oversight require 
support from the Attorney 
General’s Chamber in order 
to resolve protocol questions 
raised by the audit, requiring 
amendment of the CAA 
Act 2011 (as amended), and 
supporting regulations. With 
closure of these outstanding 
protocol questions, the 
following reporting period 
should see CAAB achieving 
state EI above 70% on self- 
assessment.
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period, the Aviation 
Standard and Safety 
Oversight Technical Team 
will continue efforts to 
develop the NSARCC 
mandated National Search 
and Rescue Manual, which 
is expected to be launched 
in the last quarter of 
the 2020/2021 reporting 
period. Furthermore, it is 
expected that the same 
reporting period will see 
the signing of Memoranda 
of Understanding (MoUs) 
with key stakeholders to 
operationalise the National 
Search and Rescue 
Programme.

Airport services
The Civil Aviation Authority 
of Botswana is charged with 
the management of airports 
through five sections – 
Airport Operations; Airport 
Safety, Airport Security, 
Fire and Rescue, and 
Business Development, 
and is also responsible for 
the management of the 
following six main airports of 
Botswana:

• Sir Seretse Khama 
International Airport 
(Gaborone);

• Maun International 
Airport;

• Francistown International 
Airport;

• Kasane International 
Airport;

• Ghanzi Airport; and
• Selibe Phikwe Airport.

This is in addition to the 
management of 19 satellite 
aerodromes located around 
the country.

Safety offices were 
established at Sir Seretse 
Khama International Airport 
(Gaborone), Francistown, 
Kasane, and Maun; however, 
challenges were faced in 
attracting qualified staff 
across most sites.

Certification deadlines will 
be established in 2019 for Sir 
Seretse Khama International 
Airport, and 2022 for 
Francistown and Maun.

Maun International 
Airport was the focus of 
considerable activity during 
the reporting period, with 
fire breaks constructed 
around the airport 
perimeter fence and sale of 
obsolete items conducted 
through an auction. The 
level of activity at Maun 
will not reduce moving 
forward, as the currently 
highly congested terminal 
building will be extensively 
refurbished, and the apron 
and vehicle parking areas 
will be expanded through 
construction works.

In addition to the already 
mentioned new terminal 
building and control tower 
at Kasane International 
Airport, the Fire Station, 
control tower, old terminal 
building and Airport Police 
station have also been 
refurbished.

Infrastructure at Sir Seretse 
Khama International and 
Maun airports will also be 
improved through the 
drilling and installation of a 
borehole to improve water 
supply on-site.

In order to address the 
human resource shortages 
outlined above, workforce 
allocations will be reviewed, 
rationalised and staff 
retention strategies will be 
developed. It is likely that 
the Authority will look to 
the private sector moving 
forward, outsourcing 
where possible, beginning 
with landscaping, security 
and custodial services. 
Furthermore, the Authority 
specifically needs to 
identify and attract 
personnel trained in Estate 
Management.

In terms of Business 
Development Operations, 
the Airport Services 
Directorate has allocated 
critical commercial spaces at 
key airports, specifically Sir 
Seretse Khama International 
Airport (SSKIA), but faces 
the same human resources 
challenges as other units.

Maun International 
Airport was the focus 
of considerable activity 
during the reporting 
period, with fire breaks 
constructed around the 
airport perimeter fence 
and sale of obsolete 
items conducted 
through an auction.
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PEOPLE ISSUES

At the end of the period under review, 
CAAB employed 828 people on a full-time 
basis, 94 on temporary basis and engaged 
35 interns. The Authority continues to 
seek fair practices through the application 
of sound Human Resource policies and 
procedures by ensuring no discrimination 
or prejudice, and championing inclusion 
as a principle to safeguard diversity in the 
Authority’s workforce.

Our most important 
stakeholders are our 
staff members. They 
are the lifeblood of the 
organisation, enabling us to 
deliver on our mandate on 
a day to day basis.

During the period under 
review, the Human 
Capital Services has 
achieved improved levels 
of compliance with the 
labour laws of Botswana 
with the intention of 
fostering a harmonious 
working environment for 
all staff. Compliance with 
this regulatory framework 
provides structure and 
direction to CAAB as 
an organisation, whilst 
protecting the rights of 
workers.

As has been reflected 
across the departments in 
this report, reduced staff 
compliment is a persistent 
problem at CAAB; and, with 
limited human resources 
and problems driven by 
challenges faced with staff 
retention, it is becoming 
increasingly difficult to fulfil 

obligations as a National 
Civil Aviation Authority. The 
diverse and technical nature 
of the CAAB mandate 
requires engagement of 
committed, capable and 
skilled workers, a situation 
that has been hard to 
achieve under current 
structures and prevailing 
conditions of service.  These 
challenges have a trickle-
down effect on staff morale 
and are evident from head-
office to each airport site 
across the country. Low staff 
morale has also become 
evident through the 
increased number of staff 
grievances lodged during 
the period under review, 
which is also attributable 
in part to delays in the 
completion of the ongoing 
Organisational Review 
process – initiated in 2014.
Finally, the Authority was 
unable to finalise review 
of the CAAB Conditions 
of Employment and 
Performance Management 
System Policy during the 
period under review due 
to the need for further 
consultations with key 

stakeholders. This process 
when completed should 
see improved working 
conditions, but has led to 
further reductions in staff 
morale. It is hoped that the 
subsequent period will see 
this policy completed, which 
will in turn see improved 
working conditions and staff 
satisfaction. Furthermore, 
the Organisational Review 
process must be driven 
forward next year so as to 
address staffing challenges 
through revised structures, 
operating environments and 
conditions that have drawn 
negative attention in the 
current structure.

Moving forward, two initiatives 
are needed to support the 
above-mentioned review 
processes: firstly, a corporate-
level programme needs to 
be initiated to boost staff 
morale and build a cohesive 
workforce; and following 
review of the Performance 
Management System Policy, 
improved turnaround time for 
resolving staff grievances will 
be a priority.
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TOTAL REVENUE

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

NON-AERONAUTICAL REVENUE 
INCREASED BY

REVENUE

AERONAUTICAL REVENUE INCREASED BY

SURPLUS INCREASED BY

27%

0.2%

27%

11%

7%

223%

2018 365.6 million

2018 323.8 million 2018 112.8 million

2018 33.0 million

2018 43.9 million

2018 145.8 million

in 2018 compared to a deficit of P35 mil in 
2017

2017 286.8 million

2017 324.6 million 2017 105.4 million

2017 25.9 million

2017 (35.6 million)

2017 131.2 million

From a financial perspective, the period under 
review saw a 27% increase in total revenue, which 
while including the Government subvention 
increased from P286.8 million the previous year in 
the preceding period to P365.5 million at year end.
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REVENUE

AERONAUTICAL REVENUE INCREASED BY

SURPLUS INCREASED BY

This marked increase in 
revenue is due to two key 
factors: the introduction of 
revised aeronautical revenue 
rates - implemented in 
November 2017 - and 
the supplementary 
grant received from the 
Ministry of Transport & 
Communications.

Excluding the Government 
subvention, revenue 
increased from P131.2 
million in 2016/17 to P145.8 
in 2017/18, an increase of 
11%. The major contributor 
to this positive growth was 
an increase in aeronautical 
revenue resulting directly 
from annual escalation of 
en route navigation charges, 
up 7% from the preceding 
period. Non-aeronautical 
revenue side also saw a 
marked improvement due 
to a 19% increase on rental 
income from tenant letting 
across the National airports.

Following a 4% reductions 
staff costs – the most 
significant portion of CAAB 
expenses – the Authority 
saw a P0.8 million reduction 
in total operating expenses 
from P324.6 million in the 
previous year to P323.8 
million.

Supplementary Government 
subvention eased the 
pressure on overall 
operations, which hand-in-
hand with reduced operating 
costs enabled a surplus of 
P43 million compared to 
a deficit of P35 million in 
prior year. The Authority 
also managed to disburse 
P168 million of capital grant 
funded on infrastructure 
projects in the year 2017/18.

The 2017/2018 period saw 
a number of significant 

achievements, all of which 
contributed to overall 
improvements in terms of 
fiscal management and 
increased efficiencies.
On the 1st January 2018, 
CAAB launched a new billing 
system, migrating this 
critical financial instrument 
from a manual system over 
to an automated system. 

The Authority established 
an asset register, including 
physical asset verification 
and valuation. Through 
this process, the Authority 
was able to dispose off fully 
depreciated assets, which 
realised a positive impact on 
the bottom line during this 
period.

While increased aeronautical 
and non-aeronautical 
revenues and attention to 
operating costs allowed 
the Authority to record 
significant growth, the 
period also saw its fair share 
of challenges in terms of 
finance structure, financial 
systems, debt collection and 
service delivery.

The primary challenge that 
the Finance Department 
faced in the period under 
review was staffing, with 
critical posts - Director, 
Finance Manager and 
Financial Accountant - 
vacant for more than 12 
months. These shortages 
significantly affected the 
ability of the department to 
operate  at full capacity and 
impacted on service delivery 
as a whole.

These human resource 
challenges were further 
exacerbated by a series 
of financial systems 
constraints, resulting from 
slow financial systems and/

or system downtime, lack of 
system integration between 
critical elements in the 
financial system, all of which 
resulted in duplication of 
efforts and failures to meet  
statutory deadlines. These 
constraints subsequently 
affected overall service 
delivery, which created 
backlogs in debt collection, 
monthly billing, invoicing 
and reconciliations. The 
above issues, in addition 
to lack of documented 
processes, procedures and 
systems resulted in low 
efficiency and effectiveness 
across the finance 
department, constraining 
the Authority ability to fulfil 
its regulatory role.

The next review period 
(2018/2019) will see a strong 
focus on recruitment of 
critical positions within the 
Finance Department. This 
will be supported by the 
engagement of a consultant 
to document financial 
processes and procedures, 
implement a billing system 
that will improve revenue 
completeness and accuracy, 

and integration of the 
Authority’s billing system 
into the main accounting 
system. It is hoped that the 
drive for full capacity human 
resources will improve 
overall operating efficiency 
of the Department, 
reducing backlogs, 
improving turnaround 
times on critical data and 
reporting deliverables, and 
period reports; and in the 
long run increase revenues 
allowing reduced reliance on 
Government subvention. 

In closing, it is important to 
note that with an optimal 
finance department 
structure and attention 
to financial systems, the 
financial performance of 
CAAB should continue in a 
positive light. However, such 
a large surplus should not 
be expected in the following 
period as the current surplus 
was due largely to a once-off 
supplementary subvention 
from the Ministry.

Recruitment of critical positions in the 
finance department

Billing system that will improve revenue 
completeness and accuracy

Improve overall operating efficiency 
of the Department, reducing backlogs, 
improving turnaround times

Increase revenues allowing reduced 
reliance on Government subvention. 

Outlook
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CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE
Organisational Information

NAME CIVIL AVIATION AUTHORITY OF BOTSWANA

Legal Form Body Corporate

Shareholder Government of Botswana

Mandate Promote the safe, regular, secure and efficient use and 
development of civil aviation in Botswana.

Responsibility Regulation of air transport, provision of air navigation 
services, management of airports and advising the 
Government of the Republic of Botswana on all aspects of 
civil aviation.

 Place of Domicile Gaborone, Botswana

Board Members Anthony G. Rees

Asad Petkar

Thembinkosi Johnson

Leslie Trotter

Chairperson of the Board Mark John Sampson

Chief Executive Officer Geoffrey Puseletso Moshabesha

Secretary to the Board Otsetswe Keletso Koboyankwe

Board Appointments During the Review Period Mpho Judith Dimbungu

Board Resignations/Retirements During the Review 
Period

Anthony G. Rees

Registered Office Plot 61920
Letsema Office Park
Fairgrounds
Gaborone
Botswana

Postal Address P.O. Box 250
Gaborone
Botswana

Bankers Stanbic Bank Botswana Limited
Barclays Bank of Botswana Limited 
BancABC Botswana Limited

Auditors PricewaterhouseCoopers

48 Civil Aviation Authority of Botswana  
Annual Report 2017 / 2018

P
E

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E



 Corporate Governance Statement

The Civil Aviation Authority of Botswana (CAAB) 
subscribes to the principles of good corporate 
governance.  CAAB strives to make good corporate 
governance part of the daily operations of the 
organisation through adherence to National and 
international principles, practices, standards and 
norms that 
promote, among 
others, fairness, 
accountability and 
transparency.  

To demonstrate CAAB’s commitment to good corporate governance, the Board has put in 
place a Charter which sets out the duties and responsibilities of the Board and those of the 
Management.  The Charter seeks to enhance delivery on the CAAB mandate within a corporate 
governance framework which provides a clear, consistent and transparent set of principles by 
which the Board and Management agree to be bound in the discharge of their duties.  

GOVERNING BODIES

Board

The Board is the governing body of the Authority.  In terms of the Section 15 of the Civil 
Aviation Act, 2011, the Board shall consist of a Chairperson and not less than four (4) nor more 
than eight (8) Members (including the Chief Executive Officer). The appointing authority for 
members of the Board is the Minister of Transport and Communications.  

During the period under review, the following served on the Board:

Mr. Mark John Sampson    - Board Chairman (Resigned November 2018)
Mrs. Mpho Judith Dimbungu    - Board Chairperson
Mr. Anthony G. Rees    - Board Member (Resigned October 2017)
Mr. Thembinkosi Johnson       -   Board Member
Mr.  Asad Petkar        -   Board Member
Mr. Leslie Trotter    -     Board Member 
Mr. Geoffrey Puseletso Moshabesha  -   Ex Officio Board Member/CEO

The operations of the Board are governed by the Board Charter which prescribes minimum 
standards designed to promote high standards of corporate governance. 
 
1. Board Finance, Audit and Risk Committee
Mr. Asad Petkar    - Chairman
Mrs. Mpho Judith Dimbungu   - Member
Mr. Leslie Trotter    - Member  

2. Board Technical Services/Customer Services Committee
Mr.  Anthony G. Rees    - Chairman
Mr. Thembinkosi Johnson    - Member
Mr. Leslie Trotter    - Member

3. Board Tender Committee
Mr. Thembinkosi Johnson    - Chairman
Mr. Anthony Rees    - Member 
Mr. Asad Petkar    - Member

4. Board Human Capital and Remuneration Committee
Mr.  Leslie Trotter    - Chairman 
Mr. Asad Petkar    - Member
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Board Members’ Remuneration
Board Members are remunerated for attendance of meetings in accordance with the schedule of fees as advised by 
the Government of Botswana from time to time.  During the period under review, the members’ fees were paid at the 
following rates:

Chairperson - BWP2250 (wef. 1 April 2017)
Member - BWP1800 (wef. 1 April 2017)

Board Meetings
The Civil Aviation Act, 2011 requires the Board to meet at least once every three months.  Dates for ordinary 
meetings of the Board are set at the beginning of the financial year.  Special meetings are held as and when 
dictated by the business or other requirements of the Authority.  During the period under review, a total of four 
(4) Board meetings were held. The table below shows the attendance of Board meetings and meetings of Board 
Committees by respective Members:

MEMBERS
BOARD 
BOARD

FINANCE 
AND AUDIT 
COMMITTEE

HUMAN CAPITAL AND 
ADMINISTRATION 
COMMITTEE

TENDER 
COMMITTEE

TECHNICAL 
SERVICES 
COMMITTEE

REMUNERATION
BWP

Mark J. Sampson 5/5 5/5 5/5 N/A 3/4 87,660.00

Anthony G. Rees 4/5 N/A N/A 3/4 3/4 24,540.00

Asad Petkar 5/5 5/5 4/5 3/4 N/A 60,358.00

Thembinkosi Johnson 5/5 N/A N/A 4/4 3/4 64,728.00

Leslie Trotter 4/5 4/5 4/5 N/A 3/4 70,752.00

Mpho J. Dimbungu N/A 2/5 N/A N/A N/A 22,776.00

Geoffrey P. Moshabesha 3/5 5/5 5/5 3/4 3/4 NIL

GRAND TOTAL BWP 330,814.00

Disclosure of Interest
At every meeting of the Board or Committee of the Board, each Member is required, in compliance with Section 
23 of the Civil Aviation Act, 2011, to disclose any direct or indirect interest in a private capacity that he/she might 
have on any of the matters which are the subject of discussion at such meeting.  Besides being asked by the 
Chairperson to state if they have any interest, Members are required to each fill a Declaration of Interest Form 
indicating whether or they have any such interest. 

Secretary to the Board
The Secretary to the Board is responsible for the provision of Board administrative and legal advisory services as 
well as corporate governance advice to the Board and Management.  The Secretary is the custodian of the legal 
transactions of the Authority.  

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)
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Annual Financial
Statements
The Annual Financial Statements are presented in Botswana 
Pula, which is also the Authority's functional currency.

All financial information presented in Botswana Pula has been 
rounded to the nearest Pula. The Annual Financial Statements 
have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued and effective at the date of 
preparing these financial statements. The financial statements 
have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except where 
disclosed otherwise.
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54 Civil Aviation Authority of Botswana    

Civil Aviation Authority of Botswana has been incorporated under Civil Aviation Act, 2011. 
 
Principal activities: 
To promote the safe, regular, secure and efficient use and development of civil aviation in Botswana. 
 
Registered address: 
Plot 61920, Fairgrounds Office Park, Gaborone 
 
Non-Executive Directors 
Mr. Mark John Sampson  – Board Chairman (Retired: November 2018)
Ms. Mpho J. Dimbungu  – Board Chairperson  
Mr. Anthony G. Rees  – Board Member (Retired: October 2017)
Mr. Thembinkosi Johnson  – Board Member 
Mr. Asad Petkar  – Board Member 
Mr. Leslie Trotter  – Board Member 

Executive Team: 
Mr. Geoffrey Puseletso Moshabesha  – Chief Executive Officer
Ms. Otsetswe Keletso Koboyankwe  – Corporate Secretary 
Mr. Silas Silas  – Director, Air Navigation Services
Mr. Moses Leselwa  – Director, Airport Services
Mr. Kabo Phutietsile  – Director, Airport Engineering and Maintenance
Mr. Lebone Peter Sedingwe  – Director, Corporate Services 
Mr. Modipe Nkwe  – Chief Public Affairs Officer
Mr. Christopher Ferguson  – Director, Aviation Flight Safety and Oversight
Mr. Caswell Stephen  – Manager, Aviation Standards and Safety Oversight
Mr. Monti Tlagae  – Manager, Air Transport
Mr. Kealeboga Mogaetsho  – Manager, Internal Audit
Mr. Maitseo Pelaelo  – Manager, Aviation Security and Facilitation Oversight
 
Independent auditors: 
PricewaterhouseCoopers 
 
Bankers: 
Stanbic Bank Botswana Limited 
Barclays Bank of Botswana Limited 
BancABC Limited 
 
(The financial statements are expressed in Pula, the currency of Botswana) 

GENERAL INFORMATION 
For the year ended 31 March 2018
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibility        
The Members of the Board of the Civil Aviation Authority of Botswana (the "Authority") is responsible for the 
maintenance of adequate accounting records and the preparation, integrity and fair presentation of the financial 
statements. The financial statements, which comprise of the statement of financial position at 31 March 2018, and 
the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity, cash flows for the year then 
ended, and the explanatory notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting 
policies, have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.    
       
The Authority maintains systems of internal control which are designed to provide reasonable assurance that the 
records accurately reflect its transactions and to provide protection against serious  misuse or loss of the Authority's 
assets. The Members of the Board is also responsible for the design, implementation, maintenance and monitoring 
of these systems of internal financial control. Nothing has come to the attention of the board to indicate that any 
significant breakdown in the functioning of these system has occurred during the year under review.   
        
The going concern basis has been adopted in preparing the annual financial statements. The Members of the board 
has no reason to believe that the Authority will not be a going concern in the foreseeable future based on forecasts 
and available cash resources. 
 
Our external auditors conduct an examination of the financial statements in conformity with International 
Standards on Auditing, which include tests of transactions and selective tests of internal accounting controls. 
Regular meetings are held between management and our external auditors to review matters relating to internal 
controls and financial reporting. These independent auditors have unrestricted access to the Board.   
        
Approval of annual financial statements        
The financial statements set out on pages 61 to 86 and other supplementary information on pages 87 to 88 were 
authorised for issue by the Members of the Board on 12 July 2019 and are signed on its behalf by:   
            
           
      
        
        
        
        

Chairperson of the Board                 Chief Executive Officer  

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY AND
APPROVAL OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  
TO THE MINISTER OF TRANSPORT AND COMMUNICATION

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Our opinion 
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of Civil 
Aviation Authority of Botswana (the “Authority”) as at 31 March 2018, and its financial performance 
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (“IFRS”).

What we have audited 
Civil Aviation Authority Botswana’s financial statements set out on pages 61 to 86 comprise:

● the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2018;
● the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
● the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
● the statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
● the significant accounting policies; and
● the notes to the financial statements.

Basis for opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the 
audit of the financial statements section of our report. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. 

Independence 
We are independent of the Authority in accordance with the Botswana Institute of Chartered 
Accountants’ Code of Ethics (the “BICA Code”) and other independence requirements applicable to 
performing audits of financial statements in Botswana.  We have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the BICA Code. The BICA Code is 
consistent with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for 
Professional Accountants (Parts A and B).

Key audit matter 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in 
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. This matter was addressed in the context of 
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 
provide a separate opinion on this matter.  

PricewaterhouseCoopers, Plot 50371, Fairground Office Park, Gaborone, P O Box 294, Gaborone, Botswana
T: (267) 395 2011, F: (267) 397 3901, www.pwc.com/bw

Country Senior Partner: B D Phirie
Partners: R Binedell, A S Edirisinghe, L Mahesan, R van Schalkwyk, S K K Wijesena

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MINISTER OF TRANSPORT AND COMMUNICATION

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Our opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of Civil
Aviation Authority of Botswana (the “Authority”) as at 31 March 2017, and its financial performance
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”).

What we have audited
Civil Aviation Authority Botswana’s financial statements set out on pages 67 to 94 comprise;
● the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2017;
● the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
● the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
● the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and
● notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Independence
We are independent of the Authority in accordance with the Botswana Institute of Chartered
Accountants Code of Ethics (the “BICA Code”) and the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of financial statements in Botswana. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the BICA Code. The BICA Code is consistent with the
International Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (Parts A
and B).

Other information
The Members of the Board are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Civil Aviation Authority Annual Financial Statements for the year
ended 31 March 2017, which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report and other sections of
2016/17 Annual Report, which is expected to be made available to us after that date. Other information
does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will
not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit 
matter 

 

Impairment of trade receivables 
  

The Authority has net trade receivables of P21.8 
million after providing for impairment of P19.2 
million. 

The Authority reviews its trade receivables to 
assess impairment on each reporting date. In 
determining whether an impairment loss should 
be recorded, the Authority determines whether 
there is objective evidence in terms of IAS 39 
Financial Instruments indicating that there is 
measurable decrease in the estimated cash flows 
from these trade receivables. The recoverable 
amount is estimated by management based on the 
specific recoverability assessments performed on 
individual debtors with reference to the aging 
profiles, historical payment patterns, the past 
records of default and the subsequent recoveries. 
Management recognises specific provisions 
against individual balances. 

The impairment of trade receivables is considered 
to be a matter of most significance to the current 
year audit due to the judgements and 
assumptions made by management when 
performing the impairment assessments and the 
magnitude of the trade receivables balance 
recorded in the financial statements. 

The disclosures associated with impairment of 
trade receivables are set out in the financial 
statements in the following notes: 

● Note 1 (c) - Financial Risk Management, 
Credit Risk 

● Note 2 (b) - Critical accounting estimates 
and judgements, Impairment of accounts 
receivables and 

● Note 10 – Trade and other receivables  

 

 

Our audit procedures included assessing the 
client’s calculation of the impairment provision by 
performing an independent calculation. Our 
independent calculation did not materially vary 
from management’s estimate of the impairment 
of trade receivables.  

Our procedures on judgements and assumptions 
included in the calculation included, amongst 
others: 

● Testing the accuracy of the aging of the trade 
receivables at year end on a sample basis; 

● Obtaining a list of outstanding receivables 
and identifying any debtors with financial 
difficulty through discussion with 
management, taking into consideration 
recent payment patterns; 

● Evaluating management’s assessment of  the 
recoverability of the trade receivables with 
reference to the ageing profile of the debtors, 
historical payment pattern of the debtors, 
and subsequent settlements; and 

● Testing subsequent settlement of trade 
receivables after the balance sheet date on a 
sample basis. 

We found the judgements and assumptions used 
by management in the impairment assessment of 
trade receivables to be supportable based on the 
available evidence.  
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Other information 
 
The Members of the Board are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises 
the information included in the Civil Aviation Authority of Botswana Annual Financial Statements for 
the year ended 31 March 2018, which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report and other 
sections of Civil Aviation Authority of Botswana Annual Report 2017/18, which is expected to be 
made available to us after that date. Other information does not include the financial statements and 
our auditor’s report thereon. 
 
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will 
not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  
 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears 
to be materially misstated. 
  
If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of 
this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we 
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
 
 
Responsibilities of the Members of the Board for the financial statements 
The Members of the Board are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a 
true and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and for such 
internal control as the Members of the Board determines is necessary to enable the preparation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
 
In preparing the financial statements, the Members of the Board are responsible for assessing the 
Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Members of the Board either 
intend to liquidate the Authority or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.  
 
 
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these financial statements.  
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 

● Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control.  
 

● Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control.  

 
● Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by the Members of the Board.  
 
● Conclude on the appropriateness of the Members of the Board’s use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Authority’s ability to continue 
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Authority to cease to continue as a going concern.  

 
● Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 
We communicate with the Members of the Board regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit. 
 
From the matters communicated with the Member of the Board, we determine those matters that were 
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the 
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes 
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a 
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 
 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
In accordance with Section 37(2) of the Civil Aviation Act, 2011 (the “Act”), we confirm that: 

● We have received all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge 
and belief, are necessary for the performance of our duties as auditors; 

● The accounts and related records of the Authority have been properly maintained. 
● The Authority has complied with all the financial provisions of the Act with which it is its 

duty comply with , except for Sections 37(1) and 38 as detailed in the Non-compliance 
with Sections 37 (1) and 38 of the Civil Aviation Act, 2011 section as detailed below; and 

● The financial statements prepared by the Authority were prepared on a basis which is 
consistent with that of the preceding year. 
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Non-compliance with Sections 37 (1) and 38 of the Civil Aviation Act, 2011 

Section 37 (1) of the Act requires that the accounts of the Authority in respect of each financial year 
shall, within four months of the end of the financial year, be audited by an auditor appointed by the 
Board. Further, Section 38 prescribes that the Authority shall, not later than six months after the end 
of each financial year, prepare and present to the Minister of Transport and Communication an Annual 
Report on the performance of its functions during that year which shall also include auditor’s report 
and a copy of the audited accounts; and a record of all directions received from the Minister in the 
course of the year. 
 
The Board did not engage the auditor to commence the audit within four months of the financial year 
end and, consequently, did not submit the audited financial statements to the Minister by the 
stipulated date (30 September 2018). 
 
 
 

Individual Practicing Member: Kosala Wijesena        Gaborone 
Registration number: 20000110                  05 September 2019 
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Notes 2018 2017

Pula Pula

Income

Government grants 3.1  219,727,446  155,510,535 

Revenue 3.2  145,831,043  131,291,185 

Total  365,558,489  286,801,720 

Employee costs 4  (220,965,677)  (230,391,259)

Other operating costs  (102,852,032)  (94,245,945)

Total expenditure  (323,817,710)  (324,637,204)

Surplus / (deficit) for the year before finance income  41,740,779  (37,835,484)

Finance income 6  1,327,369  2,228,604 

Surplus/ (deficit) for the year  43,068,148  (35,606,880)

Other comprehensive income  -    -   

Total comprehensive surplus / (deficit) for the year  43,068,148  (35,606,880)
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 March 2018

Notes 2018 2017

Pula Pula

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 7  77,999,496  76,913,302 

Intangible assets 8  7,380,571  1,269,630 

Deferred lease assets 14  9,360,193 6,034,025 

 94,740,260 84,216,957 

Current assets

Inventory 11  1,242,730  -   

Trade and other receivables 10  40,082,723  38,819,446 

Deferred lease assets 14  2,360,105  294,155 

Cash and cash equivalents 9  113,673,739  99,196,227 

 157,359,297  138,309,828 

TOTAL ASSETS  252,099,557  222,526,785 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Capital funds  20,958,037  20,958,037 

Accumulated surplus  53,344,038  10,275,889 

 74,302,075  31,233,926 

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 12  77,519,732  105,473,955 

Bank overdraft  181,488  -   

Deferred income - Government grants advance 13  100,096,262  85,818,904 

 177,797,482  191,292,859 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  252,099,557  222,526,785 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Capital funds
Accumulated 

surplus Total

Pula Pula Pula

Balance at 1 April 2016  20,958,037 45,882,769 66,840,806 

Deficit for the year  -    (35,606,880)  (35,606,880)

Balance at 31 March 2017  20,958,037 10,275,889 31,233,926 

Balance at 1 April 2017  20,958,037 10,275,889 31,233,926 

Surplus for the year  -   43,068,148 43,068,148 

Balance at 31 March 2018  20,958,037 53,344,038 74,302,075 

For the year ended 31 March 2018



64 Civil Aviation Authority of Botswana    

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Notes 2018 2017 

Pula  Pula 

Cash flows from operating activities

Surplus/(deficit) for the year before finance income  41,740,779  (37,835,484)

Non-cash items adjustments:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 5  1,972,134  4,158,415 

Amortisation of intangible assets 5  78,616  356,646 

Loss on disposal on disposal of property, plant and equipment  3,208,736  -   

Movement in deferred lease assets 14  (5,392,118)  (3,269,406)

Working capital adjustments:

Increase in inventory  (1,242,730)  -   

Increase/(decrease) in trade and other receivables  (1,263,277)  3,541,080 

Decrease in trade and other payables  (13,676,865)  38,382,616 

Cash generated from operating activities  25,425,276  5,333,867 

Net cash flow from operating activities  25,425,276  5,333,867 

Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment  3,142,177  -   

Interest received 6  1,327,369  2,228,604 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment  (12,114,026)  (68,534,978)

Purchase of intangible assets  (3,484,772)  -   

Net cash used in investing activities  (11,129,252)  (66,306,374)

Cash flows from financing activities

Movement in deferred grant

Net cash from investing activities  -    -   

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  14,296,024  (60,972,507)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year  99,196,227  160,168,734 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 9  113,492,251  99,196,227 
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out 
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. 
       
Basis of preparation        

The annual financial statements are presented in Botswana Pula, which is also the company's functional currency. All 
financial information presented in Botswana Pula has been rounded to the nearest Pula. The annual financial statements 
have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued and effective at the 
date of preparing these financial statements. The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, 
except where disclosed otherwise. 
  
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. 
It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Authority’s accounting policies and 
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The 
areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to 
the Authority’s financial statements are disclosed in the "Critical accounting estimates and assumptions" section of the 
financial statements.           
 
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated based on historical experience and factors, including expectations of 
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.      
         
Property, plant and equipment        

All property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment charges. Cost includes 
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying 
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated 
with the item will flow to the Authority and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the 
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial 
period in which they are incurred.
        
The residual value, useful life of each asset and, depreciation methods are reviewed at each financial period-end, and 
adjusted prospectively if appropriate. Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in 
relation to the total cost of the item is depreciated separately.
        
Depreciation is not provided on land and property plant and equipment in the course of construction as they are not yet 
available for use. Depreciation is provided on property, plant and equipment on a straight line basis taking into account any 
residual value. Property, plant and equipment acquired/received through capital grants are depreciated on net of capital 
grants. The estimated useful lives assigned to property plant and equipment categories are:    
           
Buildings  30 to 50 years     
Furniture and fittings up to 10 years     
Equipment  5 to 25 years     
Motor vehicles  6 to 10 years     
Office equipment  5 to 25 years     
Computer equipment 3 to 5 years     
        
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising from de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of comprehensive 
income in the year the asset is de-recognised. Consumables and loose tools are written off in the year of purchase. 
     
Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible 
assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.    
    
Costs associated with maintaining computer and air navigation software programmes are recognised as expenses as 
incurred. Costs that are directly associated with identifiable and unique software products controlled by the Authority that 
will probably generate economic benefits exceeding costs beyond one year are recognised as intangible assets. Direct costs 
include staff costs of the software development team and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.   
          

For the year ended 31 March 2018
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Expenditure which enhances or extends the performance of computer software programmes beyond their original 
specifications is recognised as a capital improvement and added to the original cost of the software.    
          
Intangible assets are amortised over the economic useful life using the straight-line method, and assessed for impairment 
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation 
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes 
in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are 
accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting 
estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in deficit/surplus for the year. 
Intangible assets acquired/received through capital grants are amortised on net of capital grants. The estimated useful life 
used for arriving at amortisation rate is:
        
Air navigation and computer software   10 years    
        
Impairment of non-financial assets       

The Authority assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such 
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Authority makes an estimate of the asset's 
recoverable amount.
        
The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's or cash generating unit's fair value less cost to sell and its value in use 
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of 
those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the 
asset is considered impaired In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value 
using pre-tax discount rate that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 
to the assets. In determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are 
corroborated by available fair value indicators.  

Impairment losses are recognised in surplus or deficit in expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired 
asset. An assessment is made at each reporting date whether there is any indication that previously recognised impairment 
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Authority estimates the asset’s recoverable 
amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to 
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the 
carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have 
been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is 
recognised in surplus or deficit.
    
Impairment of financial assets        

A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that it is impaired. 
A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had a negative 
effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset. An impairment loss in respect of the financial asset measured 
at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its arrying amount, and the present value of the estimated 
future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate. Significant financial assets are tested for impairment 
on an individual basis. The remaining financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk 
characteristics.The carrying values of the company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine 
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indications exist, then the asset’s recoverable amount is 
estimated.           
 
Foreign Currencies
   
(a) Functional currency        
Items included in the financial statements of the Authority are measured using the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the Authority operates (functional currency). The financial statements are presented in Botswana 
Pula (“the presentation currency”), which is the Authority's functional currency.      
  
        

New and amended standards and interpretations (continued)
Intangible assets (continued)
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(b) Transactions and balances        
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rate prevailing at the date 
of the transaction. Customers are billed at a monthly average exchange rate. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting 
from the settlement of such transactions and from translation of the year end balances of monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.    
    
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end 
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in surplus or deficit. 
           
Trade receivables 
       
Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at fair value less provision for impairment. 
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is 
recognised in the income statement within 'general and administration expenses'. When a trade receivable is uncollectible, 
it is written-off against the provision for bad debts. Subsequent recoveries of the amounts previously written-off are credited 
against 'other income' in the income statement.        
        
A provision for impairment of trade receivables is established when there is evidence of significant financial difficulties of 
the debtor. The probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation and default, or be delinquent 
in payments (i.e. more than 120 days overdue) are factors that are considered to be indicators that the trade receivable is 
impaired.
    
Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost which approximates fair value.  
  
For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, deposits held at call 
with banks, and other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less and bank 
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown in current liabilities on the statement of financial position.    
    
Provisions        

Provisions are recognised when the Authority has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is 
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be 
made. Employee entitlements to annual leave and contractual gratuities are recognised when they accrue to employees as 
a result of services rendered by employees up to the reporting date.       
 
Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined 
by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect 
to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.       
 
Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using a 
rate that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The 
increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.      
  
Employee benefits        

(a) Short-term employee benefits
The cost of short-term employee benefits, those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as annual 
leave are recognised in the period in which the service is rendered and are not discounted. The short -term employee 
benefits of the Authority include the following : salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave and non-monetary benefits 
(car, housing medical aid and subsidised goods and services).
        
(b) Defined contribution plan      
The Pension Fund was established with effect from 1 March 2011 and was registered as a defined contribution scheme 
pension fund, in terms of the Pension and Provident Funds Act (Chapter 27:03).      
  

Foreign Currencies  (continued)
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All permanent employees of the Authority are members of the Pension Fund. Employees contribute 5% of their basic 
salaries towards the Fund and the Authority contributes 15% of the members pensionable earnings towards the Fund to 
finance retirement benefits, death benefits and Fund expenses. The Authority does not have any legal or constructive 
obligation to pay further contributions, if the Fund fails to meet employee benefits at the end of service. For those 
employees who do not participate in the Pension Fund, provision is made for severance benefits in terms of the 
Employment Act (Cap 47.01).
        
The Authority does not have any legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions, if the Fund fails to meet 
employee benefits at the end of service. For those employees who do not participate in the Pension Fund, provision is 
made for severance benefits in terms of the Employment Act (Cap 47.01).

Trade Payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods and services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business 
from suppliers. Accounts payables are classified as current liabilities, if payment is due within one year or less at the 
reporting date. If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.      
  
Leases        

Leases in which a significant portion of the risk and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as 
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the 
income statement on a straight- line basis over the period of the lease.        
 
Financial instruments        

Initial recognition and measurement        
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Authority becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument.       
 
Classification        
The Authority classifies its financial assets and liabilities in to the following categories.     
   
- Loans and receivables
        
- Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
        
Classifications depends on the purpose for which the financial instruments were obtained/incurred and takes place at 
initial recognition. Classification is re-assessed on an annual basis.       
 
Loans and receivables        
Trade receivables and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market 
are classified as loans and receivables. Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method, less any impairment. Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term 
receivables when the recognition of interest would be immaterial.       
 
Loan receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method, less provision for impairment where there is evidence that the Authority will not be able to collect all 
amounts due according to the original terms of receivables.       
 
Impairment        
‘Loans and receivables’ are assessed for indications of impairment at each reporting date. Financial assets are impaired 
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the 
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been impacted.     
   
A provision for impairment of trade receivables is established when there is evidence of significant financial difficulties of 
the debtor. The probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation and default, or be delinquent 

Employee Benefits (continued)
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in payments (i.e. more than 120 days overdue) are factors that are considered to be indicators that the trade receivable is 
impaired.  

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is 
recognised in surplus or deficit within ‘other administrative expenses’. When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written-
off against the allowable account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of the amounts previously written-off are 
credited against ‘other operating income’ in surplus or deficit.       
 
For ‘Loans and receivables’ objective evidence of impairment could include:     
 
• significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or      
• default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or      
• it is becoming probable that the consumer will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.    
  
The Authority reviews its trade receivable to assess impairment on each reporting date. In determining whether an 
impairment loss should be recorded, the Authority makes judgments as to whether there is any observable data indicating 
that there is measurable decrease in estimated cash flows from debtors.
 
The recoverable amount was estimated by management based on their specific recoverability assessment on individual 
debtor with reference to the aging profile, historical payment pattern, the past record of default of the customer and 
subsequent recoveries. Management would make specific provision against individual balances with reference to the 
recoverable amount.
    
De-recognition of financial assets        
The Authority de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual right to the cash flows from the asset expire; or 
it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the 
Authority neither transfers nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred 
asset, the Authority recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If 
the Authority retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Authority continues to 
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
        
Financial liabilities        
Financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. Financial liabilities 
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense recognised on an 
effective yield basis.
        
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest 
expense over a relevant period. The effective interest rate method is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash 
payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter-period.    
    
De-recognition of financial liabilities        
The Authority de-recognises financial liabilities when, and only when the Authority’s obligations are discharged, cancelled, or 
they expire.
        
Government Grants

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the Authority will comply with the 
conditions attached to them and the grants will be received.        
 
(a) Government grants related to assets (capital grants)      
These are grants whose primary condition is that for the Authority to qualify for them the Authority should purchase, 
construct or otherwise acquire long-term assets. Subsidiary conditions may also be attached restricting the type or location 
of the assets or the periods during which they are to be acquired or held.       
  
The Authority presents the grant related to assets in the statement of financial position by deducting the grant in arriving 
at the carrying amount of the asset. The grant is recognised in statement of comprehensive income over the useful lives of 
depreciable assets as reduced depreciation expenses. 
       

Financial instruments (continued)
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(b) Government grants related to income        
These are government grants other than those related to assets. These are recognised as income over the  periods 
necessary to match them with the related costs that they are intended to compensate.     
   
A government grant that becomes receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose 
of giving immediate financial support to the Authority with no future related costs is recognised as income of the period in 
which it becomes receivable.
        
When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for 
which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. 
        
Government grants related to income are presented as income in the statement of comprehensive income.   
   
Deferred income - Government contributions
 
Grant received in advance or grant received, but not spent for the purpose of which is it received by the end of reporting 
date is deferred in the statement of financial position.        

Revenue        

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Authority and the revenue 
can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration receivable, excluding discounts, rebates 
and other taxes and duty. 
        
The amount of revenue is not considered to be reliably measurable until all contingencies relating to the sale have been 
resolved. The Authority bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of 
transaction and the specifics of each arrangement. The following specific criteria are used for the purpose of recognition of 
revenue.
        
(i) Grant income is recognised as income over the period necessary to match them with the related costs that they are 

intended to compensate      
(ii) Navigation fee income is calculated based on the Maximum Take-Off Weight (MTOW) of aircraft and recognised on an 

accrual basis
(iii) Landing and parking income is based on the Maximum Take-Off Weight (MTOW), subject to a minimum charge and 

parking duration in the apron of the airport and recognised on an accrual basis.    
(iv) Passenger service charge is recognised at the time of departing international and local passengers.  
(v) Rental income is recognised on a straight line basis over the lease term.      
(vi) Regulatory charges are recognised on an accrual basis.      
(vii) Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.    

       
Related party transactions        

"Related parties are defined as those entities where there are common shareholders and directors. Related party 
transactions consist of amounts due to or from entities under common ownership or control of shareholders and directors. 
Related party transactions are conducted on mutually agreed terms and conditions in the normal course of business. 
 
Amounts due from related parties are carried at cost, which is the fair value of consideration to be received in the future for 
goods and services rendered. 
 
Related parties comprise the Government of Botswana, other Government-related entities, directors and senior 
management of the Authority."        

Income tax        

Authority is exempt from income tax under Part I of the second schedule of the Income Tax Act (52:01).

Government Grants (continued)
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New and amended standards and interpretations      
   
Standards and interpretations effective in the current year       
In the current year, the entity has adopted all the new and revised standards and interpretations issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the International Financial Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) of the IASB that are 
relevant to its operations and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2017. Adoption of these standards and 
interpretations have not had any significant impact on the financial statements of the Authority.    
    
Amendments to IAS 1,'Presentation of financial statements' disclosure initiative (effective date 1 January 2016)
In December 2014 the IASB issued amendments to clarify guidance in IAS 1 on materiality and aggregation, the 
presentation of subtotals, the structure of financial statements and the disclosure of accounting policies.   
     
Standards in issue but not yet effective         
At the authorisation of these financial statements, the following standards were issued but not yet effective for annual 
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.        

IFRS 15 – Revenue from contracts with customers. (effective annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018) 
The FASB and IASB issued their long awaited converged standard on revenue recognition on 29 May 2014. It is a single, 
comprehensive revenue recognition model for all contracts with customers to achieve greater consistency in the 
recognition and presentation of revenue. Revenue is recognised based on the satisfaction of performance obligations, 
which occurs when control of good or service transfers to a customer.
        
The IASB has amended IFRS 15 to clarify the guidance, but there were no major changes to the standard itself. The 
amendments comprise clarifications of the guidance on identifying performance obligations, accounting for licenses 
of intellectual property and the principal versus agent assessment (gross versus net revenue presentation).  New and 
amended illustrative examples have been added for each of these areas of guidance. The IASB has also included additional 
practical expedients related to transition to the new revenue standard.       
 
IFRS 9 – Financial Instruments (2009 &2010) (effective annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018) This 
standard replaces the guidance in IAS 39. It includes requirements on the classification and measurement of financial assets 
and liabilities; it also includes an expected credit losses model that replaces the current incurred loss impairment model. 

"Amendment to IFRS 9 -'Financial instruments', (effective Annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2018)" 
The IASB has amended IFRS 9 to align hedge accounting more closely with an entity’s risk management. The revised 
standard also establishes a more principles-based approach to hedge accounting and addresses inconsistencies and 
weaknesses in the current model in IAS 39.

IFRS 16 – Leases (effective annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019)     
This standard replaces the current guidance in IAS 17 and is a far reaching change in accounting by lessees in particular. 
Under IAS 17, lessees were required to make a distinction between a finance lease (on balance sheet) and an operating 
lease (off balance sheet). IFRS 16 now requires lessees to recognise a lease liability reflecting future lease payments and a 
‘right-of-use asset’ for virtually all lease contracts. The IASB has included an optional exemption for certain short-term leases 
and leases of low-value assets; however, this exemption can only be applied by lessees. 
        
For lessors, the accounting stays almost the same. However, as the IASB has updated the guidance on the definition of 
a lease (as well as the guidance on the combination and separation of contracts), lessors will also be affected by the new 
standard. At the very least, the new accounting model for lessees is expected to impact negotiations between lessors and 
lessees. Under IFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified 
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. 

IFRS 16 supersedes IAS 17, ‘Leases’, IFRIC 4, ‘Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease’, SIC 15, ‘Operating 
Leases – Incentives’ and SIC 27, ‘Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease’.   
      
IFRIC 22, ‘Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration (effective annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2018)
This IFRIC addresses foreign currency transactions or parts of transactions where there is consideration that is denominated 
or priced in a foreign currency. The interpretation provides guidance for when a single payment/receipt is made as well as 
for situations where multiple payment/receipts are made. The guidance aims to reduce diversity in practice. 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 March 2018



72 Civil Aviation Authority of Botswana    72 Civil Aviation Authority of Botswana    

1 Risk Management

Capital Risk Management

The Authority's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Authority's ability to continue as a going 
concern in order to provide benefits for stakeholders. In managing capital, the Authority strives to provide maximum 
benefits to stakeholders at the lowest possible cost. There were no borrowings during the year under review. There 
are no externally imposed capital requirements and there have been no changes to what the Authority manages as 
capital, the strategy for capital maintenance or externally imposed capital requirements from the previous year.

Financial Risk Management

The Authority’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks 
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Authority’s financial performance. Risk management is carried-out under 
policies approved by the Board. The Board provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as written 
policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial 
instruments, non-derivative financial instruments, and investment of excess liquidity.

The Authority’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.  Exposure to 
interest risk and credit risk is experienced in the normal course of business. However, the Authority does not hold 
or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes which are more vulnerable to such risks. Instead, the 
Authority's principal financial liabilities comprise trade and related party payables. The Authority also has various 
financial assets such as receivables, cash and short-term deposits, which arise directly from its operations.

a) Market risk

Foreign exchange risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect 
the company's income or the value of its financial instruments. The objective of the market risk management is to 
manage and control market risk exposure within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. 
      
Foreign exchange risk       
"In the normal course of business, the Authority enters into some transactions denominated in foreign currencies. In 
addition, the Authority has receivables and liabilities in foreign currencies mainly in the United States Dollars (USD), the 
Great Britain Pounds (GBP), the Euro (EUR) and the South African Rand (ZAR). As a result, the Authority is exposed to  
fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates. To manage the foreign exchange risk arising from these transactions 
the Authority keeps the revenue received and expenses incurred in customer or vendor currency in forein currency 
bank accounts from which all foreign currency denominated goods and services are paid.  
 
At 31 March 2018, if Botswana Pula had strengthened by 10% against the other currencies with all other variables held 
constant, the favourable impact to income statements is P 2.5 Mn (2017: P 1.06 Mn). At 31 March 2018, if Botswana Pula 
had weakened by 10% against the other currencies with all other variables held constant, the unfavourable impact to 
income statements is P 0.3Mn (2017: P 1.3 Mn)."       
       
Price Risk       
The Authority is not exposed to price risk as it does not have any financial instruments that will fluctuate due to 
changes in market prices.       
       
Interest rate risk       
Fluctuations in interest rates impact on the value of short-term cash investments and financing activities, giving 
rise to interest rate risk. Surplus funds are invested in a manner to achieve maximum returns while minimising risk. 
An increase of 1% in the interest rate in short-term cash deposits would increase interest income by P1,105,436 (2017: 
P977,772).       

For the year ended 31 March 2018
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1 Risk Management (continued)

Financial Risk Management (continued)

b) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability 
of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to close-out market positions. 
Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, management of the Authority aims to maintain flexibility in 
funding by keeping committed credit lines available.

The following tables detail the Authority’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The 
tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on 
which the Authority can be required to pay.

2018 2017

Pula Pula

Less than 1 year:

Trade and other payables      47,168,589        76,177,658 

c) Credit risk

Financial assets of the Authority, which are subject to credit risk, consist mainly of trade and other receivable 
and cash resources. The Authority has policies in place to ensure that as far as possible service provided on 
credit are made to customers with an appropriate credit history. Payment for other services are made in cash or 
electronic funds transfers. The Authority holds cash deposits with reputable financial institutions. 

Financial assets exposed to credit risk at the year end were as follows.

2018 2017 

Pula Pula

Trade and other receivables 29,255,289  30,406,901 

Cash and cash equivalents

Banc ABC Ltd  571,645  51,751,567 

Stanbic Bank of Botswana Ltd  107,366,340  27,046,828 

Barclays Bank of Botswana Ltd          5,554,267  20,382,738 

 113,492,251  99,181,133 

For the year ended 31 March 2018
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2 Critical Accounting Estimates and Assumptions
The Authority makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates 
will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a 
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next 
financial year are discussed below.

(a) Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The Authority annually assesses the appropriateness of the useful life and residual value estimates. The estimated 
residual values of the property, plant and equipment have been determined by the Authority’s directors based on 
their knowledge of the industry.

(b) Impairment loss on trade receivables

The Authority reviews its trade receivable to assess impairment on each reporting date. In determining whether 
an impairment loss should be recorded, the Authority makes judgments as to whether there is any observable 
data indicating that there is measurable decrease in estimated cash flows from debtors.
 
The recoverable amount was estimated by management based on their specific recoverability assessment 
on individual debtor with reference to the aging profile, historical payment pattern, the past record of default 
of the customer and subsequent recoveries. Management would make specific provision against individual 
balances with reference to the recoverable amount."

c) Impairment of property, plant and equipment        
The Authority reviews the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment to determine whether there is 
any indication of impairement. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in 
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss.        
 
d) Provision for obsolete inventory         
The authority reviews the net realisable value (NRV) of inventories on a periodic basis in order to determine 
whether the inventory is being held in the books at the lower of cost and NRV.     
    

2018 2017 

Pula Pula

3 Revenue

3.1 Government grants

Government subvention income  219,727,446  155,510,535 

 219,727,446  155,510,535 

3.2 Revenue

Aeronautical  112,822,505  105,359,654 

Non-aeronautical revenue  33,008,538  25,931,531 

 145,831,043  131,291,185 

 365,558,489  286,801,720 

For the year ended 31 March 2018
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
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2018 2017

Pula Pula

4 Employee cost
Salaries and allowances  202,689,548  214,372,871 

Group insurance  1,698,628  1,132,632 

Other staff costs  16,577,501  14,885,756 

 220,965,677  230,391,259 

Average number of employees

Permanent 828 823

Temporary 94 96

5 Surplus / (deficit) before finance income:
Surplus / (deficit) before finance income is stated after:

Remuneration paid to executive management  14,352,917  6,951,268 

Accounts receivable impairment charges  2,713,614  (896,924)

Auditors remuneration  534,048  437,920 

Sitting allowance for Board members  533,817  130,233 

Employee costs  220,965,677  230,391,259 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  1,972,134  4,158,415 

Amortisation of intangible asset  78,616  356,646 

Foreign exchange losses  3,882,448  1,309,015 

Stores, Spares and Consumables  11,792,659  11,078,955 

Utilities  19,670,573  15,489,623 

Repairs and maintenance  26,181,385  22,590,508 

General office and administration  35,492,738  39,591,554 

6 Finance income
Interest income on bank deposits  1,327,369  2,228,604 
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Land Buildings
Furniture and 

fittings Equipment
Office 

equipment
Computer 

equipment
Motor 

vehicles
Work-in 

progress Total

Pula Pula Pula Pula Pula Pula Pula Pula Pula

7 Property, Plant and Equipment
(a) Property, plant and equipment funded by capital 
grants

For the year ended 31 March 2017

At beginning of the year 147,279,000 3,059,787,220 1,572,286 195,441,167 24,305,432 1,798,800 11,439,016 203,666,244 3,645,289,165 

Additions  -   31,443,611  -   68,105,700  -    -    -   221,451,108 321,000,419 

Depreciation  -    (77,189,993)  (227,947)  (28,105,482)  (2,422,200)  (377,822)  (3,075,861)  -    (111,399,305)

Net book value at end of year 147,279,000 3,014,040,838 1,344,339 235,441,385 21,883,232 1,420,978 8,363,155 425,117,352 3,854,890,279 

For the year ended 31 March 2018

At beginning of the year 147,279,000 3,014,040,838 1,344,339 235,441,385 21,883,232 1,420,978 8,363,155 425,117,352 3,854,890,279 

Additions  -    -    -    -    -    -    15,203,741 129,482,325 144,686,066 

Transfer from property,plant equipment  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    4,013,629 4,013,629 

Transfer to intangibles  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    (3,745,747)  (3,745,747)

Transfers from work-in-progress  13,145,458  306,680,110  2,738,669  95,375,665  42,510,847  3,421,650  387,861  (464,260,260)  -   

Write-off capital work-in-progress  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    (83,550,064)  (83,550,064)

Transfer to inventory  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    (1,242,730)  (1,242,730)

Disposals on cost  -    (8,971,000)  (346,352)  (450,127)  (157,505)  (943,809)  (7,357,392)  -    (18,226,185)

Depreciation  -    (75,358,128)  (1,094,863)  (37,665,252)  (4,062,355)  (2,128,559)  (7,998,124)  -    (128,307,281)

Depreciation on disposals  -    2,098,261  346,352  450,127  157,505  943,809  7,357,392  -    11,353,446 

Net book value at end of year 160,424,458 3,238,490,081 2,988,145 293,151,798 60,331,724 2,714,069 15,956,633 5,814,505 3,779,871,413 

As at 31 March 2017

Cost 147,279,000 3,390,829,315 2,608,864 345,872,167 34,634,965 3,605,439 30,256,266 425,117,352 4,380,203,368 

Accumulated depreciation  -    (376,788,477)  (1,264,525)  (110,430,782)  (12,751,733)  (2,184,461)  (21,893,111)  -    (525,313,089)

Carrying value of capital grant  (147,279,000)  (3,014,040,838)  (1,344,339)  (235,441,385)  (21,883,232)  (1,420,978)  (8,363,155)  (425,117,352)  (3,854,890,279)

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

As at 31 March 2018

Cost 160,424,458 3,688,538,425 5,001,181 440,797,705 76,988,307 6,083,280 38,490,476 5,814,505 4,418,653,565 

Accumulated depreciation  -    (450,048,344)  (2,013,036)  (147,645,907)  (16,656,583)  (3,369,211)  (22,533,843)  -    (642,266,924)

160,424,458 3,238,490,081 2,988,145 293,151,798 60,331,724 2,714,069 15,956,633 5,814,505 3,779,871,413 

Carrying value of capital grant  (160,424,458)  (3,238,490,081)  (2,988,145)  (293,151,798)  (60,331,724)  (2,714,069)  (15,956,633)  (5,814,505)  (3,779,871,413)

Net book value at end of the year  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

For the year ended 31 March 2018
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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Land Buildings
Furniture and 

fittings Equipment
Office 

equipment
Computer 

equipment
Motor 

vehicles
Work-in 

progress Total

Pula Pula Pula Pula Pula Pula Pula Pula Pula

7 Property, Plant and Equipment
(a) Property, plant and equipment funded by capital 
grants

For the year ended 31 March 2017

At beginning of the year 147,279,000 3,059,787,220 1,572,286 195,441,167 24,305,432 1,798,800 11,439,016 203,666,244 3,645,289,165 

Additions  -   31,443,611  -   68,105,700  -    -    -   221,451,108 321,000,419 

Depreciation  -    (77,189,993)  (227,947)  (28,105,482)  (2,422,200)  (377,822)  (3,075,861)  -    (111,399,305)

Net book value at end of year 147,279,000 3,014,040,838 1,344,339 235,441,385 21,883,232 1,420,978 8,363,155 425,117,352 3,854,890,279 

For the year ended 31 March 2018

At beginning of the year 147,279,000 3,014,040,838 1,344,339 235,441,385 21,883,232 1,420,978 8,363,155 425,117,352 3,854,890,279 

Additions  -    -    -    -    -    -    15,203,741 129,482,325 144,686,066 

Transfer from property,plant equipment  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    4,013,629 4,013,629 

Transfer to intangibles  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    (3,745,747)  (3,745,747)

Transfers from work-in-progress  13,145,458  306,680,110  2,738,669  95,375,665  42,510,847  3,421,650  387,861  (464,260,260)  -   

Write-off capital work-in-progress  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    (83,550,064)  (83,550,064)

Transfer to inventory  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    (1,242,730)  (1,242,730)

Disposals on cost  -    (8,971,000)  (346,352)  (450,127)  (157,505)  (943,809)  (7,357,392)  -    (18,226,185)

Depreciation  -    (75,358,128)  (1,094,863)  (37,665,252)  (4,062,355)  (2,128,559)  (7,998,124)  -    (128,307,281)

Depreciation on disposals  -    2,098,261  346,352  450,127  157,505  943,809  7,357,392  -    11,353,446 

Net book value at end of year 160,424,458 3,238,490,081 2,988,145 293,151,798 60,331,724 2,714,069 15,956,633 5,814,505 3,779,871,413 

As at 31 March 2017

Cost 147,279,000 3,390,829,315 2,608,864 345,872,167 34,634,965 3,605,439 30,256,266 425,117,352 4,380,203,368 

Accumulated depreciation  -    (376,788,477)  (1,264,525)  (110,430,782)  (12,751,733)  (2,184,461)  (21,893,111)  -    (525,313,089)

Carrying value of capital grant  (147,279,000)  (3,014,040,838)  (1,344,339)  (235,441,385)  (21,883,232)  (1,420,978)  (8,363,155)  (425,117,352)  (3,854,890,279)

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

As at 31 March 2018

Cost 160,424,458 3,688,538,425 5,001,181 440,797,705 76,988,307 6,083,280 38,490,476 5,814,505 4,418,653,565 

Accumulated depreciation  -    (450,048,344)  (2,013,036)  (147,645,907)  (16,656,583)  (3,369,211)  (22,533,843)  -    (642,266,924)

160,424,458 3,238,490,081 2,988,145 293,151,798 60,331,724 2,714,069 15,956,633 5,814,505 3,779,871,413 

Carrying value of capital grant  (160,424,458)  (3,238,490,081)  (2,988,145)  (293,151,798)  (60,331,724)  (2,714,069)  (15,956,633)  (5,814,505)  (3,779,871,413)

Net book value at end of the year  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

For the year ended 31 March 2018
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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Land Buildings
Furniture and 

fittings Equipment
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Equipment Motor Vehicles
Work in
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P P P  P  P  P  P  P  P 

7 Property, Plant and Equipment 
(continued)
(b) Property, plant and equipment financed through 
internally generated funds

For  the year ended 31 March 2017

Balance at beginning of year  -   1,899,632 2,173,045 3,826,959 635,386 350,570 3,502,240 148,908 12,536,740 

Additions  -   50,182,043 520,427  -   1,690,092 7,881,971 2,838,428 5,422,017 68,534,978 

Depreciation  -    (1,192,101)  (380,440)  (828,131)  (196,540)  (996,968)  (564,235)  -    (4,158,415)

Balance at end of year  -   50,889,574 2,313,032 2,998,828 2,128,938 7,235,573 5,776,433 5,570,925 76,913,303 

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Balance at beginning of year  -   50,889,574 2,313,032 2,998,828 2,128,938 7,235,573 5,776,433 5,570,925 76,913,303 

Transfers to intangibles  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    (5,042,069)  (5,042,069)

Transfer to granted funded assets  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    (4,013,629)  (4,013,629)

Additions  -    699,977  1,561,049  1,429,654  589,172  2,348,069  1,291,000  4,195,105 12,114,026 

Depreciation  -    (51,294)  (75,288)  (601,730)  (94,190)  (288,511)  (861,121)  -    (1,972,134)

Balance at end of year  -   51,538,257 3,798,793 3,826,752 2,623,920 9,295,131  6,206,312  710,332 77,999,497 

As at 31 March 2017

Cost  -   52,367,047 4,354,162 10,191,166 2,810,326 9,513,767 6,340,668 5,570,925 91,148,062 

Accumulated depreciation  -    (1,477,474)  (2,041,130)  (7,192,338)  (681,388)  (2,278,194)  (564,235)  -    (14,234,759)

Net book value at end of year  -   50,889,573 2,313,032 2,998,828 2,128,938 7,235,573 5,776,433 5,570,925 76,913,303 

As at 31 March 2018

Cost 53,067,024 5,915,211 11,620,820 3,399,498 11,861,836 7,631,668 710,332 94,206,389 

Accumulated depreciation  -    (1,528,768)  (2,116,418)  (7,794,068)  (775,578)  (2,566,705)  (1,425,356)  -    (16,206,893)

Net book value at end of year  -   51,538,256 3,798,793 3,826,752 2,623,920 9,295,131 6,206,312  710,332 77,999,496 

Total property, plant and equipment

As at 31 March 2017  -   50,889,574 2,313,032 2,998,828 2,128,938 7,235,573 5,776,433 5,570,925 76,913,304 

As at 31 March 2018  -    51,538,256  3,798,793  3,826,752  2,623,920  9,295,131  6,206,312  710,332  77,999,496 

For the year ended 31 March 2018
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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7 Property, Plant and Equipment 
(continued)
(b) Property, plant and equipment financed through 
internally generated funds

For  the year ended 31 March 2017

Balance at beginning of year  -   1,899,632 2,173,045 3,826,959 635,386 350,570 3,502,240 148,908 12,536,740 

Additions  -   50,182,043 520,427  -   1,690,092 7,881,971 2,838,428 5,422,017 68,534,978 

Depreciation  -    (1,192,101)  (380,440)  (828,131)  (196,540)  (996,968)  (564,235)  -    (4,158,415)

Balance at end of year  -   50,889,574 2,313,032 2,998,828 2,128,938 7,235,573 5,776,433 5,570,925 76,913,303 

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Balance at beginning of year  -   50,889,574 2,313,032 2,998,828 2,128,938 7,235,573 5,776,433 5,570,925 76,913,303 

Transfers to intangibles  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    (5,042,069)  (5,042,069)

Transfer to granted funded assets  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    (4,013,629)  (4,013,629)

Additions  -    699,977  1,561,049  1,429,654  589,172  2,348,069  1,291,000  4,195,105 12,114,026 

Depreciation  -    (51,294)  (75,288)  (601,730)  (94,190)  (288,511)  (861,121)  -    (1,972,134)

Balance at end of year  -   51,538,257 3,798,793 3,826,752 2,623,920 9,295,131  6,206,312  710,332 77,999,497 

As at 31 March 2017

Cost  -   52,367,047 4,354,162 10,191,166 2,810,326 9,513,767 6,340,668 5,570,925 91,148,062 

Accumulated depreciation  -    (1,477,474)  (2,041,130)  (7,192,338)  (681,388)  (2,278,194)  (564,235)  -    (14,234,759)

Net book value at end of year  -   50,889,573 2,313,032 2,998,828 2,128,938 7,235,573 5,776,433 5,570,925 76,913,303 

As at 31 March 2018

Cost 53,067,024 5,915,211 11,620,820 3,399,498 11,861,836 7,631,668 710,332 94,206,389 

Accumulated depreciation  -    (1,528,768)  (2,116,418)  (7,794,068)  (775,578)  (2,566,705)  (1,425,356)  -    (16,206,893)

Net book value at end of year  -   51,538,256 3,798,793 3,826,752 2,623,920 9,295,131 6,206,312  710,332 77,999,496 

Total property, plant and equipment

As at 31 March 2017  -   50,889,574 2,313,032 2,998,828 2,128,938 7,235,573 5,776,433 5,570,925 76,913,304 

As at 31 March 2018  -    51,538,256  3,798,793  3,826,752  2,623,920  9,295,131  6,206,312  710,332  77,999,496 

For the year ended 31 March 2018
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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    Computer
software 

Work-in
progress Total 

Pula Pula Pula

8 Intangible Assets

(a) Intangible assets funded by capital grants

For  the year ended 31 March 2017

Balance at beginning of year  55,544,995  -    55,544,995 

Amortisation during the year  (6,795,304)  -    (6,795,304)

Balance at end of year  48,749,691  -    48,749,691 

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Balance at beginning of year  48,749,691  -    48,749,691 

Transfer from work-in progress  3,745,747  -    3,745,747 

Amortisation during the year  (7,739,573)  -    (7,739,573)

Balance at end of year  44,755,865  -    44,755,865 

As at 31 March 2017

Cost  67,881,281  -    67,881,281 

Accumulated amortisation  (19,131,590)  -    (19,131,590)

Net book value at end of year  48,749,691  -    48,749,691 

As at 31 March 2018

Cost  52,495,438  -    52,495,438 

Accumulated ammortisation  (7,739,573)  -    (7,739,573)

Net book value at end of year  44,755,865  -    44,755,865 

(b) Intangible assets funded from internally generated 
funds

For  the year ended 31 March 2017

Balance at beginning of year  1,626,277  -    1,626,277 

Amortisation during the year  (356,646)  -    (356,646)

Balance at end of year  1,269,631  -    1,269,631 

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Balance at beginning of year  1,269,631  -    1,269,631 

Acquisitions during the year  1,147,487 3,484,772  4,632,259 

Transfer from property,plant and equipment  -   1,557,297  1,557,297 

Amortisation  charge  (78,616)  -    (78,616)

Balance at end of year  2,338,502  5,042,069  7,380,571 

For the year ended 31 March 2018
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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         Computer
software 

Work-in
progress Total

Pula Pula Pula

As at 31 March 2017 3,562,693  -    3,562,693 

Cost  (2,293,062)  -    (2,293,062)

Accumulated amortisation  1,269,631  -    1,269,631 

Net book value at end of year

As at 31 March 2018

Cost  4,710,180 5,042,069  9,752,249 

Accumulated amortisation  (2,371,678)  -    (2,371,678)

Net book value at end of year  2,338,502 5,042,069  7,380,571 

2018 2017

Pula Pula

9 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank and on hand 1,536,961 1,418,974 

Short-term deposits with banks 112,136,778 97,777,253 

113,673,739 99,196,227 

Cash at bank earns interest at floating interest rates on 
daily deposit balances. Short-term deposits are usually 
made for a maximum period of three months. The fair 
value of cash and short-term deposits is P113,673,739 
(2017: P99,196,227).

For purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash 
equivalents at year end is as follows:

Cash at bank and on hand 1,536,961 1,418,974 

Short-term deposits with banks 112,136,778 97,777,253 

Bank overdraft  (181,488)  -   

113,492,251 99,196,227 

For the year ended 31 March 2018
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2018 2017

Pula Pula

10 Trade and Other Receivables
Trade receivables  41,008,309  56,345,607 

Provision for  doubtful debts  (19,219,762)  (31,022,156)

Trade receivables  - net  21,788,547  25,323,451 

Other receivable  7,466,743  5,083,450 

Prepayments  10,827,434  8,412,545 

 40,082,723  38,819,446 

Due to the short term nature, the fair values of trade and other receivable is 
same as its carrying value.

The ageing of trade receivables at the reporting date is analysed as follows:

Current  10,219,143  14,000,551 

30  - 60 days  7,487,252  6,019,393 

61  - 90 days  7,499,307  6,370,404 

91 - 120 days  2,303,407  652,510 

Over 120  13,499,200  29,302,749 

 41,008,309  56,345,607 

Fully performing
The credit quality of trade and other receivables that are fully performing 
can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings (if available) or to 
historical information about counterparty default rates: Fully performing 
receivables as at 31 March 2018 is P 21,788,547 (2017: P 25,323,451).

Past due not impaired
The average credit period is 120 days. No interest is charged on overdue 
debt. Included in the trade receivable balance are debtors which are past 
due at the reporting date for which the Authority has not provided for as 
these have been subsequently recovered. As at 31 March 2018, there are no 
any past due, but not impaired balances.   

Age analysis of past due balances not impaired are as follows:

Over 120  -    3,850,794 

 -    3,850,794 

Impaired
As at 31 March 2017, trade receivables amounting to P 31.0Mn (2016: P 31.9Mn 
) were impaired and fully provided for. Movement on the provision for 
impairment of trade receivable is as follows:

Balance at beginning of year  31,022,156  31,919,080 

Provision/(release) for the year  2,713,614  (896,924)

Receivables written off during the year as uncollectible  (14,516,008)  -   

Balance at end of year  19,219,762  31,022,156 

For the year ended 31 March 2018
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2018 2017

Pula Pula

11 Inventory
Spares for machinery  1,242,730  -   

12 Trade and other payables
Trade payables  31,798,836  67,305,182 

Payroll related accruals  29,180,262  29,058,453 

Retention payable  12,020,135  5,845,012 

Security deposits  1,125,229  1,026,229 

Other payable 3,395,270  2,239,079 

 77,519,732  105,473,955 

Trade and other payables are non interest bearing and have an average 
term of 30 days.        

13 Deferred Income- Government grant advances
Balance at beginning of the year  85,818,904  97,982,165 

Amount received  151,463,800  262,548,210 

Payments made to contractors  (168,264,590)  (274,711,471)

Reversal of prior year accruals  31,078,148  -   

100,096,262  85,818,904 

14 Deferred lease assets
Balance at beginning of the year  6,328,180  3,058,774 

Movement for the year  5,392,118  3,269,406 

Balance at end of the year  11,720,298  6,328,180 

Current assets  2,360,105  294,155 

Non-current assets  9,360,193  6,034,025 

 11,720,298  6,328,180 

For the year ended 31 March 2018
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2018 2017

Pula Pula

15 Related party disclosures

All related party transactions and balances are non-interest bearing. The 
following transactions were carried out with related parties.   
    

Grants from Government of Botswana  219,727,446  155,510,535 

Remuneration paid to executive management  14,352,917  6,951,268 

Board sitting fees  533,817  130,233 

Amounts included in trade payable regarding related parties

Air Botswana  -    243,426 

Be Mobile  -    -   

Botswana Power Corporation  864,881  1,243,500 

Botswana Post  26,008  35,269 

Botswana Telecommunications Corporation  289,937  485,044 

The Botswana Gazette  -    10,455 

Water Utilities Corporation  285,575  637,320 

Botswana Public Officers Pension Fund  36,530 

 1,502,931  2,655,015 

Amounts due from related party included in trade receivable

Air Botswana  8,305,098  10,503,806 

Botswana Government  25,292 66,619

Botswana Postal Services  23,663 -

Botswana Unified Revenue Services  474,684 120,649

Botswana Tourism Organisation  5,900 82,809

Botswana Telecommunications Corporation  18,620 17,594

Department of Immigration  61,573 48,403

Department of National Museum  17,410 27,600

Department of Wildlife  1,168 -

Botswana Defence Force  40,285 -

 8,973,692  10,867,480 

For the year ended 31 March 2018
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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loans and 
receivables

Financial 
liabilities 

measured at 
amortised 

cost Total

Pula Pula Pula

16 Financial instruments
Classification of financial instruments

At March 2018

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents  113,673,739 -    113,673,739 

Trade and other receivables *  29,255,289 -    29,255,289 

 142,929,028 -    142,929,028 

Financial liabilities

Bank overdraft  -    181,488  181,488 

Trade and other payables **  -    47,168,589  47,168,589 

 -    47,168,589  47,168,589 

At March 2017

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents  99,196,227 -    99,196,227 

Trade and other receivables *  30,406,901 -    30,406,901 

 129,603,128 -    129,603,128 

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables ** -    76,177,658  76,177,658 

-    76,177,658  76,177,658 

* Prepayments have been excluded from trade and other receivables

** Statutory and employee liabilities have been excluded from trade and other payables

For the year ended 31 March 2018
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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17 Commitments and Contingencies

Operating lease commitments

The Authority entered into commercial leases on office premises. The lease period is five years with an option to 
renew. Future minimum rentals payable under non - cancellable operating leases as at year end are as follows. 

2018 2017

Pula Pula

Within one year  2,398,730  4,449,117 

Within two to five years  -    2,595,318 

 2,398,730  7,044,435 

Capital commitments

The Authority has following commitments  in respect of capital 
expenditures contracted for at the statement of financial position date but 
not yet incurred.

Authorised by the Board and contracted  27,840,000  51,123,199 

Contingencies

There are no material contingencies as at year end, which require adjustment or disclosure in financial 
statements.

18 Events after the Reporting Date
The directors are not aware of any matters or circumstances arising since the end of the financial year not dealt 
with in the report or annual financial statements that would significantly affect the operations of the company 
or the results of its operations.     

For the year ended 31 March 2018
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2018 2017 

 Pula  Pula 

Aeronautical

En-route navigation charges  69,338,540  64,887,328 

Landing charges  8,564,038  8,148,504 

Parking charges  1,398,966  673,277 

Passenger service charge  33,520,961  31,650,545 

 112,822,505  105,359,654 

Non-aeronautical

Regulatory charges  1,963,498  2,113,507 

Other airport income  8,384,088  4,810,022 

Rental income  22,660,953  19,008,002 

 33,008,538 25,931,531

 145,831,043 131,291,185

The supplementary information presented does not form part of the annual financial statements and is unaudited.

For the year ended 31 March 2018
DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
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DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 March 2018

2018 2017

Pula Pula

Employee costs

Salaries and allowances  202,689,548  214,372,871 

Group insurance  1,698,628  1,132,632 

Uniforms  1,075,210  641,334 

Training and seminars  4,393,611  2,603,953 

Travelling and subsistence  11,108,681  11,640,469 

 220,965,677  230,391,259 

Other operating costs

Stores, spares and consumables

Motor vehicle expenses  6,017,689  6,249,000 

Consumables  5,774,970  4,829,955 

 11,792,659  11,078,955 

Utilities

Water charges  5,241,520  3,407,181 

Electricity  14,429,054  12,082,442 

 19,670,573  15,489,623 

Repairs and maintenance

Equipment, furniture and others  18,112,017  17,486,805 

Roads, pavements, buildings and others  8,069,368  5,103,703 

 26,181,385  22,590,508 

General office and administration

Printing, postage and stationery  2,530,120  2,710,082 

Communications expenses  4,568,371  5,346,395 

Office rentals  4,116,261  4,388,199 

Advertising and publicity  5,450,554  5,785,582 

Subscriptions  3,846,464  3,377,642 

Audit fees  534,048  437,920 

Legal and other professional fees  3,794,751  5,122,069 

Board sitting fees  533,817  130,233 

Security  3,913,420  4,729,549 

Foreign exchange loss  3,882,448  1,309,015 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  1,972,134  4,158,415 

Amortisation of intangible asset  78,616  356,646 

Provision for bad debts  2,713,614  (896,924)

Insurance  5,633,455  5,400,593 

Sundry administration expenses  1,639,342  2,534,361 

Provision for other receivables  -  197,082 

 45,207,415  45,086,859 

 102,852,032  94,245,945 
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